

~~plan will not make a cumulatively considerable contribution to greenhouse gas impacts. That level is based on the State's AB 32 goals. The CAP also identifies and analyzes the emissions associated with specific actions, and sets forth performance standards to achieve the specified emissions goals. The analysis in the CAP demonstrates that this level would be achieved by these measures.~~

~~The City intends to streamline the environmental review of future projects by determining project consistency/compliance with the implementation of the CAP. Consistent with the CEQA Guidelines, projects that can provide this demonstration would be determined to have a less than significant individual and cumulative impact for greenhouse gas emissions. In some cases, projects may not be able to demonstrate complete consistency/compliance with the CAP, thus resulting in a potential determination of a significant impact on greenhouse gas emissions that could require preparation of an EIR to analyze the project's impacts and possible mitigation.~~

Page 3.0-37, the heading "Adoption of Climate Action Plan" and the associated text are deleted as follows:

~~ADOPTION OF CLIMATE ACTION PLAN~~

~~This EIR also serves as the CEQA compliance document for the Climate Action Plan. Prior to the adoption of the Climate Action Plan by the City Council, the City Council would have to certify this EIR.~~

Page 3.0-38, the first sentence in the first complete paragraph is modified as follows:

This EIR will also serve as the CEQA compliance document for subsequent actions by the Agency in furtherance of the Redevelopment Plan, as amended by the Sixth Amendment, ~~as well as the Climate Action Plan.~~

SECTION 4.0 INTRODUCTION TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS AND ASSUMPTIONS USED

Page 4.0-1, the fourth sentence in the first paragraph under the heading "Buildout Assumptions Under the General Plan Associated with the City Planning Area" is modified as follows:

It should be noted that this EIR also evaluates the impacts associated with the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan, ~~as well as those associated with the Climate Action Plan (CAP).~~

Page 4.0-1, the fifth sentence in the first paragraph under the heading “Buildout Assumptions Under the General Plan Associated with the City Planning Area” is modified as follows:

~~Both the~~ The ~~Redevelopment Plan and the CAP are~~ is consistent with the proposed General Plan and with buildout assumptions discussed below.

Pages 4.0-1 and 4.0-2, the sixth sentence in the first paragraph under the heading “Buildout Assumptions Under the General Plan Associated with the City Planning Area” is modified as follows:

As such, any development or activity under the Redevelopment Plan, as amended, ~~and/or the CAP~~ would be included in the below assumptions and would not be in addition to them.

Page 4.0-3, the first sentence in the third paragraph under the heading “Impacts and Mitigation Measures” is modified as follows:

An EIR for a general plan is substantially different from a project-level EIR in the way that mitigation measures are identified and incorporated back into the “project,” which in this case is the proposed General Plan Update, and the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan, ~~and the Climate Action Plan.~~

SECTION 4.1 LAND USE

Pages 4.1-24 and 4.1-25, the fourth paragraph under Impact 4.1.1 (Physically Divide an Established Community) is deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state’s ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures. The CAP would not result in impacts associated with the division of an established community. Impacts would be less than significant.~~

Page 4.1-31, the third paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.1.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in land use incompatibilities beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.1-32, the second paragraph under the heading “Plans Within the City of Rocklin” from Impact 4.1.3 (Conflict with Applicable Plans and Policies) is deleted as follows:

~~In addition, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas emission reduction measures. The CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions and would not conflict with any applicable plans. Impacts would be less than significant.~~

Page 4.1-37, the second paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” from Impact 4.1.5 (Cumulative Land Use Effects) is modified as follows:

In addition, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor the Climate Action Plan~~ would not result in impacts associated with cumulative land use effects beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

SECTION 4.2 AIR QUALITY

Page 4.2-21, the third sentence in the first paragraph under Impact 4.2.1 (Conflict with Air Quality Plan: Sacramento Regional 8-Hour Ozone Attainment and Reasonable Further Progress Plan) is modified as follows:

This area is required to attain the ozone standard by ~~2019~~ 2018

Page 4.2-25, the first complete paragraph is deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions;~~

~~however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state's ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures. The CAP would not directly result in development, and thus it would not result in conflicts with the Sacramento Regional 9 Hour Ozone Attainment and Reasonable Further Progress Plan beyond what was analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be less than significant. It should also be noted that implementation of the proposed CAP reduction measures (especially transportation reduction measures) would provide additional assistance in reducing ozone emissions.~~

Page 4.2-25, the second and third sentences in the impact statement for Impact 4.2.2 (Violate Air Quality Standard: Short-Term Emissions from Construction Projects) are modified as follows:

~~However,~~ Although the proposed General Plan Update has mitigating policies and their associated action steps, along with the City, District, State and Federal Rule-Based Requirements discussed below, ~~ensure the impact will be less than significant~~ these efforts will not reduce the impact to a less than significant level. Therefore, this impact is considered potentially less than significant.

Page 4.2-27, the first, second and third sentences in the fourth complete paragraph are modified as follows:

~~Due to~~ Despite the temporary nature of construction-related impacts and ~~because the requirement that~~ projects must be in compliance with General Plan Policy OCR-58 as implemented through the mitigations stated in the City's "Mitigation for Air Quality Impacts" form, as well as PCAPCD, state, and federal rules and regulations, these impacts ~~will not~~ may result in a violation of an air quality standard or in a substantial contribution to an existing or projected air quality violation. ~~If it is determined that the PCAPCD daily emission thresholds will still be exceeded after application of mitigation measures, there remains the ability to scale back the grading and/or construction operations by reducing the amount of work being done by limiting the area of grading and/or construction or by limiting the amount and type of construction equipment.~~ Thus, this impact is considered to be ~~less than significant~~ less than significant and unavoidable.

Page 4.2-27, the fifth complete paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.2.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~this~~ these project

components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they it~~ would not result in impacts associated with construction-related air emissions beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.2-28, the first sentence under the heading “Mitigation Measures” is modified as follows:

None required feasible beyond the policies, associated action steps, District, State, and Federal Rule-Based Requirements, and the selection of applicable air quality mitigation measures from a menu list as discussed above.

Page 4.2-29, the third paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.2.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~this these~~ project components would not result in land use activities or growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they it~~ would not result in emissions or air quality impacts beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update in **Tables 4.2-6 and 4.2-7**.

Page 4.2-32, the fourth paragraph is deleted as follows:

~~It should also be noted that the City’s CAP provides feasible strategies to reduce emissions from energy use, transportation, land use and solid waste. As such, strategies implemented in association with the CAP would also be expected to reduce emissions and improve air quality.~~

Page 4.2-32, the first and second sentences in the fifth paragraph are modified as follows:

Implementation of proposed General Plan Update policies identified above, their associated action steps, the District, State, and Federal Rule-Based Requirements, and the selection of applicable air quality mitigation measures from a menu list, ~~and the Climate Action Plan~~ would reduce potential mobile and stationary source air quality impacts. While the proposed policies and action steps, District, State, and Federal Rule-Based Requirements, ~~the CAP,~~ and the selection of applicable air quality mitigation measures from a menu list would assist in reducing the magnitude of the stationary and mobile air quality impacts generated by subsequent land use activities associated with implementation of the General Plan Update and its associated project components, they would not reduce these pollution increases to a less than significant level.

Page 4.2-34, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.2.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~this these~~ project components would not result in land use activities or growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they it~~ would not result in additional traffic volumes or air quality impacts beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update in **Table 4.2-8** above, and impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.2-35, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.2.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these this~~ project components would not result in land use activities or growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they it~~ would not result in additional TAC source emissions or exposure from mobile sources from roadways or railroad operations beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update below.

Page 4.2-35, the paragraph under the heading “Stationary Sources” is modified as follows:

For projects which may include stationary sources (i.e. gasoline dispensing facility, auto painting, dry cleaning, large HVAC units, etc.), project applicants are required to obtain an Authority to Construct (ATC) permit from the Placer County Air Pollution Control District, and a third party detailed Health Risk Assessment may be required as part of the permitting process. The issuance of air quality permits such as an ATC permit and compliance with all district, state and federal regulations regarding stationary TACs reduce potential sources of toxic air emissions such that sensitive receptors would not be exposed to substantial pollutant concentrations such as toxic air contaminants. Therefore the proposed General Plan Update’s potential stationary TAC impacts are considered **less than significant**.

Page 4.2-39, third paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.2.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~this these~~ project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they it~~ would not result in impacts associated

with creation of objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.2-40, the first sentence in the fourth paragraph under Impact 4.2.7 (Cumulative Contributions to Regional Air Quality Impacts) is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan nor the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with contributions to regional air quality impacts beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

SECTION 4.3 AESTHETICS

Page 4.3-13, the third paragraph under the heading “Mitigation Measures” is deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state’s ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures. Implementation of the CAP would promote the installation of renewable energy facilities that could further alter the existing visual character of the city associated with solar panels and small wind turbine facilities (see CAP Goal 2 Renewable Energy and associated reduction measures 5, 6, and 7). This would add to the significant and unavoidable visual impacts of the proposed General Plan Update.~~

Pages 4.3-15 and 4.3-16, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.3.3 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the Climate Action Plan, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. ~~These~~ This project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update; ~~however, implementation of the CAP would promote the installation of solar panels that could be a source of daytime glare depending on the design and orientation of the panel (see CAP Goal 2 Renewable Energy and associated reduction measures 5, 6, and 7). This would add to the significant and unavoidable glare impacts of the proposed General Plan Update.~~

SECTION 4.4 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

Page 4.4-51 and intersection number 401 in Table 4.4-15 on that page are modified as follows:

City of Roseville

Table 4.4-15 shows that ~~two~~ three intersections in the City of Roseville degrade from LOS C or better to LOS D with buildout of the proposed General Plan Update

**Table 4.4-15
PM PEAK HOUR LOS – ROSEVILLE INTERSECTIONS
EXISTING CONDITIONS WITH BUILDOUT OF PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN**

Intersection	Existing Conditions		Existing with Buildout of Proposed General Plan Update	
	V/C	LOS	V/C	LOS
Pleasant Grove & Fairway	0.68	B	0.92	E

* The edit consisted of shading being added to the 0.92 V/C ratio and LOS columns for the Pleasant Grove & Fairway intersection

Page 4.4-77, the third paragraph is deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state's ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures. The CAP would not result in impacts to intersection level of service beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. The CAP would provide emission reduction measures that would assist in reducing vehicle miles traveled generated in the city. Impacts would be less than significant.~~

Page 4.4-85, the third paragraph is modified as follows:

As discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.14.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities, population growth, or increased traffic beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts to highway segments beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. ~~The CAP would provide emission reduction measures that would also assist in reducing vehicle miles traveled generated in the city.~~

Page 4.4-88, the second complete paragraph is modified as follows:

As discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.14.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities, growth, or increased traffic beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts to highway ramp intersections beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. ~~The CAP would provide emission reduction measures that would also assist in reducing vehicle miles traveled generated in the city.~~

Page 4.4-89, the second complete paragraph is modified as follows:

As discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.14.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities, growth, or increased traffic beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts to intersections in Loomis beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update. ~~Implementation of the CAP would actually provide reduction measures that would assist in reducing vehicle miles traveled generated in the city.~~ Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.4-91, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

As discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.14.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities, growth, or increased traffic beyond

what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts to intersections in Roseville beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update. ~~Implementation of the CAP would actually provide emission reduction measures that would also assist in reducing vehicle miles traveled generated in the city.~~ Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.4-92, the third paragraph is modified as follows:

As discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.14.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities, growth, or increased traffic beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts to intersections in Lincoln beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update. ~~Implementation of the CAP would actually provide emission reduction measures that would also assist in reducing vehicle miles traveled generated in the city.~~ Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.4-94, the first paragraph is modified as follows:

As discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.14.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities, growth, or increased traffic beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts to intersections in Placer County beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update. ~~Implementation of the CAP would actually provide emission reduction measures that would also assist in reducing vehicle miles traveled generated in the city.~~ Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.4-95, the third paragraph is modified as follows:

As discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.14.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities, growth, or increased traffic beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts to transit services beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update. ~~The CAP transportation reduction measures include measures to further promote the use of transit (CAP reduction measures 12, 13, 21 and 22).~~ Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.4-96, the third paragraph is modified as follows:

As discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.14.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities, growth, or increased traffic beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts to bicycle and pedestrian facilities beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update. ~~The CAP transportation reduction measures include measures to further promote bicycle and pedestrian use (CAP reduction measures 13, 17, 18, 19, 20, and 21).~~ Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.4-97, the third complete paragraph is modified as follows:

As discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.14.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities, growth, or increased traffic beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts related to at-grade railway conflicts beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

SECTION 4.5 NOISE

Page 4.5-25, the first paragraph under the subheading “Federal Railroad Administration” is modified as follows:

The federal government, in response to safety concerns at at-grade crossings, enacted the Swift Rail Development Act of 1994. This act mandated that the Secretary of Transportation issue regulations requiring the use of locomotive horns at public grade crossings, but gave the agency the authority to make reasonable exceptions. On January 13, 2000, the Federal Railroad Administration published a Notice of Proposed Rule Making in the Federal Register addressing the use of locomotive horns at public road-rail grade crossings. Accordingly, locomotive horns must be sounded on approach and while entering public grade crossings, unless there is no significant risk of increased grade crossing collisions, the use of a locomotive horn is impractical, or where safety measures can be installed to fully compensate for the absence of warning provided by the horn. On April 27, 2005, the Federal Railroad Administration published the **Final Rule on the Use of Locomotive Horns at Highway-Rail Crossings**. In addition to requiring that train horns must be sounded, the Rule also established a nationally

consistent methodology for establishing, maintaining, and enforcing “quiet zones”. Quiet zones are segments of railroad lines where train crews are exempt from sounding the horn at grade crossings. The sounding of warning horns can greatly affect predicted noise contours within the community.

Page 4.5-30, the third paragraph is deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state’s ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures. Therefore, the CAP would not result in noise-related impacts beyond those analyzed for the General Plan Update.~~

Page 4.5-34, the fourth paragraph under the heading “Mitigation Measures” is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.5.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in construction noise impacts beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.5-40, under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation”, the following policy is added:

Policy C-33 Seek improvements to existing railroad crossings and construction of new grade separated crossings or undercrossings where appropriate and feasible.

Page 4.5-40, the second paragraph under the heading “Mitigation Measures” is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.5.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in increased traffic beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update. Therefore, transportation noise impacts would be the same as those analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.5-42, the second complete paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.5.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in noise-related impacts beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.5-44, the third paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.5.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in exposure to groundborne vibration impacts beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.5-45, the third paragraph under Impact 4.5.6 (Cumulative Transportation Noise Impacts Within the Planning Area) is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ ~~the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with transportation noise beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.5-47, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ ~~the~~ CAP would not result in impacts on adjacent jurisdictions associated with transportation noise beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

SECTION 4.6 GEOLOGY AND SOILS

Pages 4.6-19 and 4.6-20, the fourth paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state’s ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures. The CAP would not result in impacts associated with seismic hazards beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be less than significant.~~

Page 4.6-21, the third paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.6.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in soil erosion and loss of topsoil impacts beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.6-22, the third paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.6.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or growth beyond what is identified

in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in development on unstable geologic units and/or soils beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.6-24, the first paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.6.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts related to soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.6-25, the second paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ ~~the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with geologic and seismic hazards beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.6-26, the second paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ ~~the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with increase of erosion and loss of topsoil beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

SECTION 4.7 HUMAN HEALTH/HAZARDS

Pages 4.7-21 and 4.7-22, the fourth complete paragraph is deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state’s ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures. The CAP~~

~~would not result in impacts associated with wildland fires beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be less than significant.~~

Page 4.7-22, the second paragraph under Impact 4.7.2 (Public Airport and Private Airstrip) is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.7.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts associated with public airport or private airport hazards beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.7-25, the second complete paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.7.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts associated with transportation, use, disposal, and potential exposure of hazardous materials beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.7-26, the first complete paragraph is modified as follows:

The proposed General Plan Update would not alter the city's overall land use patterns or land use designations to such an extent that they would conflict with the City Emergency Operations Plan. Similarly, the land uses permitted by the Redevelopment Plan are allowable uses under the City's General Plan; therefore, land use patterns under the Redevelopment Plan as amended by the proposed project do not conflict with the City Emergency Operations Plan. ~~The CAP is intended to augment the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions and would not result in conflicts with the City Emergency Operations Plan.~~

Page 4.7-27, the first paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.7.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project

components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts associated with impairing the implementation of or physically interfering with adopted emergency response and evacuation plans within the Planning Area beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.7-28, the second paragraph under the under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ ~~the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with hazardous materials and human health risks beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

SECTION 4.8 CULTURAL RESOURCES

Page 4.8-15, the first complete paragraph is deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state’s ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures. The CAP would not result in impacts associated with archaeological or historical resources or structures beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.~~

Page 4.8-16, the second paragraph under Impact 4.8.2 (Potential Destruction or Damage to Known and Undiscovered Prehistoric Resources and Human Remains) is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.8.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, and as future development under ~~these~~ this plans would be required to comply with proposed General Plan Update policies, ~~they~~ it would not result in destruction or damage to prehistoric resources and human remains beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.8-17, the second paragraph under Impact 4.8.3 (Potential Destruction or Damage to Known and Undiscovered Paleontological Resources) is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.8.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, and as future development under ~~these~~ this plans would be required to comply with proposed General Plan Update policies, ~~they~~ it would not result in destruction or damage to undiscovered paleontological resources beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.8-18, the second paragraph under Impact 4.8.4 (Cumulative Impacts on Historic Resources, Prehistoric Resources, and Human Remains) is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ ~~the CAP~~ would not result in impacts on historic resources, prehistoric resources and human remains beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.8-19, the second paragraph under Impact 4.8.5 (Cumulative Impacts to Historic Character) is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ ~~the CAP~~ would not result in impacts to historic character beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.8-20, the first complete paragraph is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ ~~the CAP~~ would not result in impacts on paleontological resources beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

SECTION 4.9 HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY

Pages 4.9-24 and 4.9-25, the third paragraph is deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General~~

~~Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state's ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures. The CAP would not result in surface water quality impacts beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be less than significant.~~

Page 4.9-26, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.9.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in polluted runoff affecting groundwater quality beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Pages 4.9-27 and 4.9-28, the third paragraph under the heading "Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation" is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.9.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in polluted runoff affecting groundwater supply beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.9-29, the third paragraph under the heading "Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation" is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.9.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in drainage impacts beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Pages 4.9-31 and 4.9-32, the fourth paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.9.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not place additional structures in the floodplain or expose additional people to flooding hazards beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.9-32, the third paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.9.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in additional exposure to the risk of seiche, tsunami, or mudflow beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.9-34, the third paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ ~~the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with water quality beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.9-35, the third paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ ~~the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with flood hazards beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

SECTION 4.10 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

Page 4.10-34, the first, second and third paragraphs are deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state's ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures.~~

~~Implementation of reduction measures associated with renewable energy facilities (see CAP Goal 2 Renewable Energy and associated reduction measures 5, 6, and 7) could involve installation of wind generators and other renewable energy facilities that have the potential to impact sensitive and special status species in unique ways compared with typical urban development. Wildlife may be potentially affected through:~~

- ~~• Electrocutation from transmission lines;~~
- ~~• Maintenance activities;~~
- ~~• Special status avian and bat strikes from wind-generating facilities (turbines) and transmission lines~~

~~In some instances, turbines, transmission lines, and other facility structures could potentially interfere with behavioral activities, including migratory movements, and may provide additional perch sites for raptors, thereby increasing predatory levels on other wildlife. While these impacts can be substantial for large scale (e.g., 100 acres and greater) wind turbine and solar facilities, such substantial impacts would not be anticipated to occur given the existing developed and entitled land use condition of the city and the resulting lack of large scale areas for alternative energy uses. Implementation of the above mitigation measures and policies would address these impacts and result in a **less than significant** impact.~~

Pages 4.10-35 and 4.10-36, the third, fourth and fifth paragraphs under the heading "Mitigation Measures" are deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General~~

~~Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state's ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures.~~

~~Implementation of reduction measures associated with renewable energy facilities (see CAP Goal 2 Renewable Energy and associated reduction measures 5, 6, and 7) could involve installation of wind generators and other renewable energy facilities that have the potential to impact species of concern and other non-listed special-status species in unique ways compared with typical urban development. Wildlife may be potentially affected through:~~

- ~~• Electrocutation from transmission lines;~~
- ~~• Maintenance activities;~~
- ~~• Special-status avian and bat strikes from wind-generating facilities (turbines) and transmission lines~~

~~In some instances, turbines, transmission lines, and other facility structures could potentially interfere with behavioral activities, including migratory movements, and may provide additional perch sites for raptors, thereby increasing predatory levels on other wildlife. While these impacts can be substantial for large scale (e.g., 100 acres and greater) wind turbine and solar facilities, such substantial impacts would not be anticipated to occur given the existing developed and entitled land use condition of the city and the resulting lack of large-scale areas for alternative energy uses. Implementation of the above mitigation measures and policies would address these impacts and result in a **less than significant** impact.~~

Pages 4.10-37 and 4.10-38, the third, fourth and fifth paragraphs under the heading "Mitigation Measures" are deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state's ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures.~~

~~Implementation of reduction measures associated with renewable energy facilities (see CAP Goal 2 Renewable Energy and associated reduction measures 5, 6, and 7) could involve installation of wind generators and other renewable energy facilities that have~~

~~the potential to impact sensitive biological communities in unique ways compared with typical urban development. Wildlife may be potentially affected through:~~

- ~~• Electrocutation from transmission lines;~~
- ~~• Maintenance activities;~~
- ~~• Special status avian and bat strikes from wind generating facilities (turbines) and transmission lines~~

~~In some instances, turbines, transmission lines, and other facility structures could potentially interfere with behavioral activities, including migratory movements, and may provide additional perch sites for raptors, thereby increasing predatory levels on other wildlife. While these impacts can be substantial for large scale (e.g., 100 acres and greater) wind turbine and solar facilities, such substantial impacts would not be anticipated to occur given the existing developed and entitled land use condition of the city and the resulting lack of large scale areas for alternative energy uses. Implementation of the above mitigation measures and policies would address these impacts and result in a **less than significant** impact.~~

Pages 4.10-38 and 4.10-39, the third, fourth and fifth paragraphs under Impact 4.10-4 (Impacts to Migratory Corridors) are deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state's ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures.~~

~~Implementation of reduction measures associated with renewable energy facilities (see CAP Goal 2 Renewable Energy and associated reduction measures 5, 6, and 7) could involve installation of wind generators and other renewable energy facilities that have the potential to impact migratory corridors in unique ways compared with typical urban development. Wildlife may be potentially affected through:~~

- ~~• Electrocutation from transmission lines;~~
- ~~• Maintenance activities;~~
- ~~• Special status avian and bat strikes from wind generating facilities (turbines) and transmission lines~~

~~In some instances, turbines, transmission lines, and other facility structures could potentially interfere with behavioral activities, including migratory movements, and may~~

~~provide additional perch sites for raptors, thereby increasing predatory levels on other wildlife. While these impacts can be substantial for large scale (e.g., 100 acres and greater) wind turbine and solar facilities, such substantial impacts would not be anticipated to occur given the existing developed and entitled land use condition of the city and the resulting lack of large scale areas for alternative energy uses. Implementation of the above mitigation measures and policies would address these impacts and result in a **less than significant** impact.~~

Pages 4.10-40 and 4.10-41, the second paragraph under the heading “Mitigation Measures” is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.10.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts associated with the loss of native oak and heritage trees beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.10-43, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.10.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in loss of oak woodland habitat beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.10-44, the second paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan would not result in impacts to special-status species, impacts to species of special concern and other non-listed special-status species, impacts to sensitive biological communities, impacts to migratory corridors, loss of native oak and heritage trees, and loss of oak woodland habitat beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. ~~However, implementation of the CAP could add to the potential for impacts to sensitive and special-status species, to species of concern and other non-listed special-status species, to sensitive biological communities, and to migratory corridors. While these impacts can be substantial for large scale (e.g., 100 acres and greater) wind turbine and solar facilities, such substantial impacts would not be anticipated to occur given the~~

~~existing developed and entitled land use condition of the city and the resulting lack of large-scale areas for alternative energy uses.~~

SECTION 4.11 POPULATION AND HOUSING

Pages 4.11-9 and 4.11-10, the third paragraph is deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state's ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures. The CAP would not result in increases in population and housing beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.~~

Page 4.11-11, the first paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.10.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population or housing growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they it~~ it would not result in impacts associated with displacement of a substantial number of persons or housing impacts beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.11-12, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with increases in population and housing beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

SECTION 4.12 PUBLIC SERVICES

Pages 4.12-10 and 4.12-11, the third paragraph is deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state's ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures. The CAP would not result in increases in demand for fire protection and emergency medical services beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be less than significant.~~

Page 4.12-12, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.12.1.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts associated with adequate fire flow beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.12-13, the third paragraph under the heading "Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation" is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with increased demand for fire protection and emergency medical services or adequate fire flow beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Pages 4.12-16 and 4.12-17, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.12.1.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project

components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts associated with the provision of adequate law enforcement services beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.12-18, the first paragraph is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ ~~the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with increased demand for law enforcement services beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.12-28, the first complete paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.12.1.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts associated with the provision of public school facilities beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.12-29, the second paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.12.1.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts associated with the provision of post- secondary school facilities beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.12-30, the second paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ ~~the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with increased demand for public schools or post-secondary education facilities beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.12-42, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.12.1.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they it~~ would not result in impacts to parks and recreation services beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.12-43, the second paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with increased demand for parks and recreation facilities beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

SECTION 4.13 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

Page 4.13-2, the second paragraph under the subheading “Wastewater Treatment Plants” is modified as follows:

To project future regional wastewater needs, the SPWA had the *South Placer Regional Wastewater and Recycled Water Systems Evaluation* prepared in June 2007. The evaluation documents wastewater facilities needed to serve the SPWA’s Service Area Boundary (SAB), which includes the City of Rocklin Planning Area. The proposed General Plan Update does not include any areas that are not within the boundaries of the 2005 SPWA Service Area Boundary. The evaluation indicates that, as of June 2004, flows to both WWTPs were below design flows, as shown in **Table 4.13.1-1**. Consequently, both plants are well within their permitted effluent discharge flow rates of 30 mgd total. (SPMUD 2008a)

Page 4.13-12, the second paragraph is deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state’s ability to attain~~

~~the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures. The CAP would not result in increased demand for wastewater treatment beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be less than significant.~~

Page 4.13-14, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.13.1.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. ~~As these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they it~~ would not result in impacts associated with increased demand for wastewater conveyance infrastructure beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.13-15, the fourth paragraph is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with increased demand for wastewater conveyance and treatment beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.13-16, the second paragraph under the heading “Western Placer Waste Management Authority” is modified as follows:

The WPWMA’s primary ~~only~~ source of funding, with the exception of approximately \$80,000 per year in used oil grant monies from the State and other minor sources of revenue, is tipping fees charged at WPWMA facilities (Oddo 2008, Hanson 2011).

Page 4.13-16, the first paragraph under the subheading “Materials Recovery Facility” is modified as follows:

As a result of the California Integrated Waste Management Act (IWMA) of 1989 (AB 939), which requires cities and counties to divert 50 percent of their waste stream from being disposed at the landfill. A majority of the solid wastes received at the WPWMA’s facility are first directed to the MRF for processing. The MRF is designed to sort through wastes to recover recyclable materials such as paper, cardboard, wood and green waste, glass, plastics, metals, electronic wastes, and inert materials such a concrete, and is a key element of the WPWMA program to help Placer County communities meet the requirements of AB 939. The MRF is also capable of accepting and processing source-separated recyclables from other recycling programs in the community. The MRF is currently permitted to accept 1,750 tons per day and 1,014 vehicles per day, but is designed to accommodate approximately 2,200 tons per day. For the period of July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2010, the average weekday tonnage received at the MRF was 815 tons

and the average weekday vehicle count at the MRF was 532; these figures are within the MRF's currently permitted capacities. Most of the residential and commercial waste generated in western Placer County goes to the MRF for processing. Materials that cannot be recycled are taken to the landfill. Currently, the MRF typically diverts approximately 50 30 percent from the MRF processing lines; combined with the additional recyclables received and diverted via the facility's buy-back center, drop-off center, compost facility, and landfill diversion (inert waste and construction/demolition waste). Facility-wide, the overall diversion achieved is nearly 50 percent. ~~of the material received from going to the landfill~~ (Oddo 2009, Hanson 2011).

Page 4.13-17, the second paragraph under the subheading "Materials Recovery Facility" is modified as follows:

To continue meeting diversion goals as mandated by AB 939, the MRF recently completed an expansion process in 2007.~~that began in 2006.~~ This expansion, which included modernized equipment and eight additional sorting lines, doubled processing capacity to over 2,000 tons of garbage per day and increased the amount of recyclable materials recovered from the waste stream by approximately 20 percent because the recovery rates at the MRF are not solely due to the expansion of added technology; actual recovery rates are highly affected by other factors, including commodity markets. The expansion is expected to accommodate Placer County's projected population growth for the next 10 to 15 years (WPWMA, 2008a).

Page 4.13-17, the first paragraph under the subheading "Western Regional Sanitary Landfill" is modified as follows:

The WPWMA operates the ~~320~~281-acre Western Regional Sanitary Landfill (WRSL), located near State Route 65 between Roseville and Lincoln. The Western Regional Sanitary Landfill has a total permitted design capacity of 36,350,000 cubic yards, and the maximum permitted disposal at the landfill is 1,900 tons per day. The landfill has a total capacity of approximately 38 million cubic yards, and a remaining capacity of approximately ~~27 million~~ 25,094,157 cubic yards. The current space available, together with recovery efforts by the MRF, will enable the landfill to accept waste until approximately 2042 (Oddo, 2008). An additional 465 acres of land for landfill expansion is located to the west of the current landfill site, although it is not yet permitted for landfill use. In addition to the 465 acres of land to the west, WPWMA also owns 158 acres to the east, although there is no defined use for that property as of yet and it currently serves as a land use buffer. In addition, the WPWMA has contracted with Energy 2001 to use methane gas produced by decomposing waste at the landfill to generate electricity, which is eventually sold to Roseville Power ~~PG&E~~ (~~WPWMA 2008b~~ Hanson 2011).

Page 4.13-18, the first sentence in the first paragraph under the subheading "California Integrated Waste Management Act" is modified as follows:

The California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (AB 939) requires all California cities and counties to ~~reduce the volume of waste deposited in landfills by~~ divert 50 percent of waste generated by the year 2000 and continue to remain at 50 percent or higher for each subsequent year.

Page 4.13-18, a third paragraph under the subheading “California Integrated Waste Management Act” under Section 4.13.2.2 Regulatory Framework is added as follows:

Senate Bill 1016 passed in 2008 moves the existing solid waste diversion accounting system to a per capital disposal based system. The bill also revised the reporting and review process so that jurisdictions determined to be in compliance with the 50 percent diversion requirement would be subject to a review every four years, while those not in compliance would continue to be reviewed every two years.

Page 4.13-20, a third sentence is added to the third paragraph and a table is added under Impact 4.13.2.1 (Increased Demand for Solid Waste Services) as follows:

Based on solid waste generation rates provided by the Western Placer Waste Management Authority (**Table 4.13.2-2**), total solid waste generation at buildout of the General Plan Update would be approximately 1,003,782.8 pounds per day, or 502 tons per day (1,003,782.8 pounds per day/2,000 pounds). For comparison purposes, total solid waste generation at buildout of the existing General Plan would be approximately 967,951.6 pounds per day, or 484 tons per day (967,951.6 pounds per day/2,000 pounds) (Table 4.13.2-2A).

TABLE 4.13.2-2A
SOLID WASTE GENERATION RATE EXISTING GENERAL PLAN BUILDOUT

<u>Land Use</u>	<u>Existing General Plan Buildout</u>	<u>Generation Rate</u>	<u>Solid Waste Generated at Existing General Plan Buildout</u>
<u>Residential</u>	<u>72,475 persons</u>	<u>7 lbs./person/day</u>	<u>507,325 lbs. per day</u>
<u>Commercial</u>	<u>15,501,000 sq. ft.</u>	<u>2.5 lbs./100 square feet/day</u>	<u>387,525 lbs. per day</u>
<u>Industrial</u>	<u>5,148,000 sq. ft.</u>	<u>1.42 lbs./100 square feet/day</u>	<u>73,101.6 lbs. per day</u>
<u>Total Solid Waste Generated at Buildout</u>			<u>967,951.6 lbs. per day</u>

Page 4.13-20, the last sentence in the third paragraph under Impact 4.13.2.1 (Increased Demand for Solid Waste Services) is modified as follows:

Therefore, waste generated at buildout of the General Plan Update would not exceed the landfill's maximum permitted disposal of 1,900 tons per day, now would it exceed the MRF's processing capacity of 2,200 tons per day. In addition, the waste generated at buildout of the General Plan Update would not exceed the landfill's current (2010) average of 607 tons per weekday.

Page 4.13-20, the fourth paragraph under Impact 4.13.2.1 (Increased Demand for Solid Waste Services) is modified as follows:

The expansion of the MRF is only expected to accommodate Placer County's projected population growth for the next 10 to 15 years. Therefore, future expansion of the MRF or a new MRF would be required to serve buildout of the proposed General Plan Update as well as regional growth expected in western Placer County. The MRF is located at the same site as the landfill and although there is substantial land available for expansion of the MRF, because of the current configuration of the MRF and landfill it would be difficult to expand the current facility. Any future increases in capacity needs would require construction of a new facility (Hanson 2010). The WPWMA operates both facilities. ~~Any expansion of the MRF, or the~~ The construction of a new MRF, would be subject to CEQA review. Potential environmental effects of an expanded or additional MRFs include, but are not limited to, air quality, biological resources, cultural resources (depending on location), hazardous materials, land use, noise and vibration (during construction), traffic, visual resources, water, and soil resources.

Page 4.13-21, under the heading "Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation", the following policies are added:

Policy PF-30 Support public education programs in order to reduce, recycle, and reuse solid waste and other materials such as oil, paint, and antifreeze in order to reduce landfill disposal.

Policy PF-31 Encourage new commercial and industrial development to incorporate recycling programs into their construction and operations.

Page 4.13-21, the third paragraph under the heading "Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation" is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.13.1.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. ~~As these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is

identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they it~~ would not result in impacts associated with increased demand for solid waste services beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. ~~CAP waste reduction measures 28 and 29 would assist in further reductions of waste sent to the landfill.~~ Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.13-22, the second paragraph under Impact 4.13.2.2 (Cumulative Increased Demand for Solid Waste Services) is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ the CAP would not result in impacts associated with increased demand for solid waste services beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.13-30, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.13.1.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they it~~ would not result in impacts associated with electrical, natural gas, and telecommunications services beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. ~~CAP energy use and renewable energy reduction measures 1 through 10 would further reduce energy demands of the city.~~ Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.13-31, the third paragraph under the heading “Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation” is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.13.1.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they it~~ would not result in impacts associated with increased demand for solid waste services beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. ~~CAP energy use and renewable energy reduction measures 1 through 10 would further reduce energy consumption levels of the city.~~ Impacts would be **less than significant**.

Page 4.13-32, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ the CAP would not result in impacts associated with increased demand for electrical,

natural gas, and telecommunications services beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

SECTION 4.14 WATER RESOURCES

Page 4.14-21, the first paragraph is deleted as follows:

~~In addition to the activities identified above, the project includes a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to address climate change and identify greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reduction measures. The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions; however, the CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. The CAP determines whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state's ability to attain the goals identified in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, identifies GHG reduction measures, and provides monitoring of the effectiveness of GHG emission reduction measures. The CAP would not result in demand for additional water supplies beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be **less than significant**.~~

Page 4.14-22, the second paragraph is modified as follows:

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.14.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~and the CAP, both of~~ which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As ~~these~~ this project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, ~~they~~ it would not result in impacts associated with increased demand for water service infrastructure beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

Page 4.14-24, the first complete paragraph is modified as follows:

As previously discussed, ~~neither~~ the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan ~~nor~~ ~~the CAP~~ would not result in impacts associated with increased demand for water supply and related infrastructure beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.

SECTION 4.15 CLIMATE CHANGE AND GREENHOUSE GASES

Section 4.15, Climate Change and Greenhouse Gases, is replaced in its entirety as per the following pages:

This section of the Draft Environmental Impact Report provides a discussion of the General Plan's ~~and Climate Action Plan's~~ effect on greenhouse gas emissions and the associated effects of climate change. The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires that lead agencies consider the reasonably foreseeable adverse environmental effects of projects they are considering for approval. The reader is referred to Section 4.2, Air Quality, for a discussion of project impacts associated with air quality.

4.15.1 EXISTING SETTING

EXISTING CLIMATE SETTING

Cumulative impacts are the collective impacts of one or more past, present, and future projects, that, when combined, result in adverse changes to the environment. When the adverse change is substantial, the cumulative impact is considered significant. The cumulative project list for this issue (global climate change) comprises anthropogenic (i.e., man-made) greenhouse gas (GHG) emission sources across the entire globe. No project alone would cause any noticeable incremental change to the global climate. However, legislation and executive orders on the subject of climate change in California have established a statewide context for GHG emissions and an enforceable statewide cap on GHG emissions. Even relatively small (on a global basis) additions need to be considered, and small contributions to this cumulative impact (from which significant effects are occurring and are expected to worsen over time) may be potentially considerable (and therefore significant).

To fully understand global climate change it is important to recognize the naturally occurring "greenhouse effect" and to define the greenhouse gases that contribute to this phenomenon. Various gases in the earth's atmosphere, classified as atmospheric greenhouse gases, play a critical role in determining the earth's surface temperature. Solar radiation enters the earth's atmosphere from space and a portion of the radiation is absorbed by the earth's surface. The earth emits this radiation back toward space, but the properties of the radiation change from high-frequency solar radiation to lower-frequency infrared radiation. Greenhouse gases, which are transparent to solar radiation, are effective in absorbing infrared radiation. As a result, this radiation that otherwise would have escaped back into space is now retained, resulting in a warming of the atmosphere. This phenomenon is known as the greenhouse effect. Among the prominent GHGs contributing to the greenhouse effect are carbon dioxide (CO₂), methane (CH₄), nitrous oxide (N₂O), hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons (PFCs), and sulfur hexafluoride (SF₆).

For most non-industrial development projects, motor vehicles make up the bulk of GHG emissions produced on an operational basis. The primary greenhouse gases emitted by motor vehicles include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, and hydrofluorocarbons (CARB 2004). Following are descriptions of the primary greenhouse gases attributed to global climate change, including a description of their physical properties, primary sources, and contribution to the greenhouse effect.

Carbon Dioxide

Carbon dioxide (CO₂) is a colorless, odorless gas. CO₂ is emitted in a number of ways, both naturally and through human activities. The largest source of CO₂ emissions globally is the combustion of fossil fuels such as coal, oil, and gas in power plants, automobiles, industrial facilities, and other sources. A number of specialized industrial production

processes and product uses such as mineral production, metal production, and the use of petroleum-based products can also lead to CO₂ emissions. The atmospheric lifetime of CO₂ is variable because it is so readily exchanged in the atmosphere (EPA 2008).

Methane

Methane (CH₄) is a colorless, odorless gas that is not flammable under most circumstances. CH₄ is the major component of natural gas, about 87 percent by volume. It is also formed and released to the atmosphere by biological processes occurring in anaerobic environments. Methane is emitted from a variety of both human-related and natural sources. Human-related sources include fossil fuel production, animal husbandry (enteric fermentation in livestock and manure management), rice cultivation, biomass burning, and waste management. These activities release significant quantities of methane to the atmosphere. Natural sources of methane include wetlands, gas hydrates, permafrost, termites, oceans, freshwater bodies, non-wetland soils, and other sources such as wildfires. Methane's atmospheric lifetime is about 12 years (EPA 2006a).

Nitrous Oxide

Nitrous oxide (N₂O) is a clear, colorless gas with a slightly sweet odor. N₂O is produced by both natural and human-related sources. Primary human-related sources of N₂O are agricultural soil management, animal manure management, sewage treatment, mobile and stationary combustion of fossil fuels, adipic acid production, and nitric acid production. N₂O is also produced naturally from a wide variety of biological sources in soil and water, particularly microbial action in wet tropical forests. The atmospheric lifetime of N₂O is approximately 120 years (EPA 2006b).

Hydrofluorocarbons

Hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs) are man-made chemicals, many of which have been developed as alternatives to ozone-depleting substances for industrial, commercial, and consumer products. The only significant emissions of HFCs before 1990 were of the chemical HFC-23, which is generated as a byproduct of the production of HFC-22 (or Freon 22, used in air conditioning applications). The atmospheric lifetime for HFCs varies from just over a year for HFC-152a to 260 years for HFC-23. Most of the commercially used HFCs have atmospheric lifetimes less than 15 years (e.g., HFC-134a, which is used in automobile air conditioning and refrigeration, which has an atmospheric life of 14 years) (EPA 2006c).

Perfluorocarbons

Perfluorocarbons (PFCs) are colorless, highly dense, chemically inert, and nontoxic. There are seven PFC gases: perfluoromethane (CF₄), perfluoroethane (C₂F₆), perfluoropropane (C₃F₈), perfluorobutane (C₄F₁₀), perfluorocyclobutane (C₄F₈), perfluoropentane (C₅F₁₂), perfluorohexane (C₆F₁₄). Natural geological emissions have been responsible for the PFCs that have accumulated in the atmosphere in the past; however, the largest current source is aluminum production, which releases CF₄ and C₂F₆ as by-products. The estimated atmospheric lifetimes for CF₄ and C₂F₆ are 50,000 and 10,000 years, respectively (EFCTC 2003; EPA 2006a).

Sulfur Hexafluoride

Sulfur hexafluoride (SF₆) is an inorganic compound that is colorless, odorless, nontoxic, and generally nonflammable. SF₆ is primarily used as an electrical insulator in high voltage equipment. The electric power industry uses roughly 80 percent of all SF₆ produced worldwide. Significant leaks occur from aging equipment and during equipment maintenance and servicing. SF₆ has an atmospheric life of 3,200 years (EPA 2008b).

Each GHG differs in its ability to absorb heat in the atmosphere based on the lifetime, or persistence, of the gas molecule in the atmosphere. Gases with high global warming potential, such as HFCs, PFCs, and SF₆, are the most heat-absorbent. Methane traps over 21 times more heat per molecule than CO₂, and N₂O absorbs 310 times more heat per molecule than CO₂. Often, estimates of GHG emissions are presented in carbon dioxide equivalents (CO₂e), which weight each gas by its global warming potential (GWP). Expressing GHG emissions in carbon dioxide equivalents takes the contribution of all GHG emissions to the greenhouse effect and converts them to a single unit equivalent to the effect that would occur if only CO₂ were being emitted. **Table 4.15-1** shows the GWPs for different GHGs for a 100-year time horizon.

**TABLE 4.15-1
GLOBAL WARMING POTENTIAL FOR GREENHOUSE GASES**

Greenhouse Gas	Global Warming Potential
Carbon Dioxide (CO ₂)	1
Methane (CH ₄)	21
Nitrous Dioxide (N ₂ O)	310
Hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), Perfluorocarbons (PFCs)	6,500
Sulfur Hexafluoride (SF ₆)	23,900

Source: BAAQMD 2006

As the name implies, global climate change is a global problem. GHGs are global pollutants, unlike criteria air pollutants and toxic air contaminants, which are pollutants of regional and local concern, respectively. California is the 12th to 16th largest emitter of CO₂ in the world and produced 492 million gross metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalents in 2004 (CEC 2006). Consumption of fossil fuels in the transportation sector was the single largest source of California's GHG emissions in 2004, accounting for 40.7 percent of total GHG emissions in the state (CEC 2006). This category was followed by the electric power sector (including both in-state and out-of-state sources) (22.2 percent) and the industrial sector (20.5 percent) (CEC 2006).

EFFECTS OF GLOBAL CLIMATE CHANGE

California can draw on substantial scientific research conducted by experts at various state universities and research institutions. With more than a decade of concerted research, scientists have established that the early signs of climate change are already evident in the state — as shown, for example, in increased average temperatures, changes in temperature extremes, reduced snowpack in the Sierra Nevada, sea level rise, and ecological shifts.

Many of these changes are accelerating – locally, across the country, and around the globe. As a result of emissions already released into the atmosphere, California will face intensifying climate changes in coming decades (CNRA 2009). Generally, research indicates that California should expect overall hotter and drier conditions with a continued reduction in winter snow (with concurrent increases in winter rains), as well as increased average temperatures, and accelerating sea level rise. In addition to changes in average temperatures, sea level, and precipitation patterns, the intensity of extreme weather events is also changing (CNRA 2009).

Climate change temperature projections identified in the 2009 California Climate Adaptation Strategy suggest the following (CNRA 2009):

- Average temperature increase is expected to be more pronounced in the summer than in the winter season.
- Inland areas are likely to experience more pronounced warming than coastal regions.
- Heat waves are expected to increase in frequency, with individual heat waves also showing a tendency toward becoming longer, and extending over a larger area, thus more likely to encompass multiple population centers in California at the same time.
- As GHGs remain in the atmosphere for decades, temperature changes over the next 30 to 40 years are already largely determined by past emissions. By 2050, temperatures are projected to increase by an additional 1.8 to 5.4°F (an increase one to three times as large as that which occurred over the entire 20th century).
- By 2100, the models project temperature increases between 3.6 and 9°F.

Precipitation levels are expected to change over the 21st century, though models differ in determining where and how much rain and snowfall patterns will change (CNRA 2009). Eleven out of 12 precipitation models run by the Scripps Institution of Oceanography suggest a small to significant (12–35 percent) overall decrease in precipitation levels by mid-century (CNRA 2009). In addition, higher temperatures hasten snowmelt and increase evaporation and make for a generally drier climate. Moreover, the 2009 California Climate Adaptation Strategy concludes that more precipitation will fall as rain rather than as snow, with important implications for water management in the state. California communities have largely depended on runoff from yearly established snowpack to provide the water supplies during the warmer, drier months of late spring, summer, and early autumn. With rainfall and meltwater running off earlier in the year, the state will face increasing challenges of storing the water for the dry season while protecting Californians downstream from floodwaters during the wet season.

Changes in average temperature and precipitation are significant. Yet gradual changes in average conditions are not all for which California must prepare. In the next few decades, it is likely that the state will face a growing number of climate change-related extreme events such as heat waves, wildfires, droughts, and floods. Because communities, infrastructure, and other assets are at risk, such events can cause significant damages and are already responsible for a large fraction of near-term climate-related impacts every year (CNRA 2009).

Most climate projections developed to date, including those used in this report, produce gradual if sometimes substantial changes for a given climate variable. In the past, rapid climate changes have been observed and scientists are increasingly concerned about additional abrupt changes that could push natural systems past thresholds beyond which they could not recover. Such events have been recorded in paleoclimatological records but current global climate models cannot predict when they may occur again (CNRA 2009). Such abrupt changes have been shown to occur over very short periods of time (a few years to decades) and thus represent the most challenging situations to which society and ecosystems would need to adapt (CNRA 2009). Short of being able to predict such abrupt changes, scientists are focusing their attention on aspects of the climate and earth system called “tipping elements” that can rapidly bring about abrupt changes.

Tipping elements refer to thresholds where increases in temperature cause a chain reaction of mutually reinforcing physical processes in the earth’s dynamic cycles. The most dangerous of these include the following (CNRA 2009):

- A reduction in Arctic sea ice, which allows the (darker) polar oceans to absorb more sunlight, thereby increasing regional warming, accelerating sea ice melting even further, and enhancing Arctic warming over neighboring (currently frozen) land areas.
- The release of methane (a potent GHG), which is currently trapped in frozen ground (permafrost) in the Arctic tundra, will increase with regional warming and melting of the ground, leading to further and more rapid warming and resulting in increased permafrost melting.
- Continued warming in the Amazon could cause significant rainfall loss and large scale dying of forest vegetation, which will further release CO₂.
- The accelerated melting of Greenland and West Antarctic Ice Sheets observed in recent times, together with regional warming over land and in the oceans, involves mechanisms that can reinforce the loss of ice and increase the rate of global sea-level rise.

According to the 2009 California Climate Adaptation Strategy, the impacts of global warming in California have the potential to include, but are not limited to, the areas discussed below.

Public Health

Climate change is expected to lead to an increase in ambient (i.e., outdoor) average air temperature, with greater increases expected in summer than in winter months. Larger temperature increases are anticipated in inland communities as compared to the California coast. The potential health impacts from sustained and significantly higher than average temperatures include heat stroke, heat exhaustion, and the exacerbation of existing medical conditions such as cardiovascular and respiratory diseases, diabetes, nervous system disorders, emphysema, and epilepsy. Numerous studies have indicated that there are generally more deaths during periods of sustained higher temperatures, and these are due to cardiovascular causes and other chronic diseases. The elderly, infants, and socially isolated people with pre-existing illnesses who lack access to air

conditioning or cooling spaces are among the most at risk during heat waves (CNRA 2009).

Floods and Droughts

The impacts of flooding can be significant. Results may include population displacement, severe psychosocial stress with resulting mental health impacts, exacerbation of pre-existing chronic conditions, and infectious disease (CNRA 2009). Additionally, impacts can include a loss of personal belongings, and the emotional ramifications from such loss, to direct injury and/or mortality.

Drinking water contamination outbreaks in the United States are associated with extreme precipitation events (CNRA 2009). Runoff from rainfall is also associated with coastal contamination that can lead to contamination of shellfish and contribute to food-borne illness. Flood waters may contain household, industrial and agricultural chemicals as well as sewage and animal waste. Flooding and heavy rainfall events can wash pathogens and chemicals from contaminated soils, farms, and streets into drinking water supplies (CNRA 2009). Flooding may also overload storm and wastewater systems, or flood septic systems, also leading to possible contamination of drinking water systems (CNRA 2009).

Drought impacts develop more slowly over time. Risks to public health that Californians may face from drought include impacts on water supply and quality, food production (both agricultural and commercial fisheries), and risks of waterborne illness. As the amount of surface water supplies are reduced as a result of drought conditions, the amount of groundwater pumping is expected to increase to make up for the water shortfall. The increase in groundwater pumping has the potential to lower the water tables and cause land subsidence (CNRA 2009). Communities that utilize well water will be adversely effected both by drops in water tables or through changes in water quality. Groundwater supplies have higher levels of total dissolved solids compared to surface waters. This introduces a set of effects for consumers, such as repair and maintenance costs associated with mineral deposits in water heaters and other plumbing fixtures, and on public water system infrastructure designed for lower salinity surface water supplies. Drought may also lead to increased concentration of contaminants in drinking water supplies (CNRA 2009).

Water Resources

The state's water supply system already faces challenges to provide water for California's growing population. Climate change is expected to exacerbate these challenges through increased temperatures and possible changes in precipitation patterns. The trends of the last century — especially increases in hydrologic variability — will likely intensify in this century. We can expect to experience more frequent and larger floods and deeper droughts (CNRA 2009). Rising sea level will threaten the Delta water conveyance system and increase salinity in near-coastal groundwater supplies (CNRA 2009). Planning for and adapting to these simultaneous changes, particularly their impacts on public safety and long-term water supply reliability, will be among the most significant challenges facing water and flood managers this century.

Agriculture

Increased GHG emissions could cause widespread changes to the agriculture industry, reducing the quantity and quality of agricultural products statewide. First, California

farmers could possibly lose as much as 25 percent of the water supply they need. California's farmers could face greater water demand for crops and a less reliable water supply as temperatures rise. Crop growth and development could change, as could the intensity and frequency of pest and disease outbreaks. Rising temperatures could aggravate ozone pollution, which makes plants more susceptible to disease and pests and interferes with plant growth.

Plant growth tends to be slow at low temperatures, increasing with rising temperatures up to a threshold. However, faster growth can result in less than optimal development for many crops, so rising temperatures could worsen the quantity and quality of yield for a number of California's agricultural products. Products likely to be most affected include wine grapes, fruits, and nuts. In addition, continued global climate change could shift the ranges of existing invasive plants and weeds and alter competition patterns with native plants. Range expansion could occur in many species while range contractions may be less likely in rapidly evolving species with significant populations already established. Should range contractions occur, new or different weed species could fill the emerging gaps. Continued global climate change could alter the abundance and types of many pests, lengthen pests' breeding season, and increase pathogen growth rates.

Forests and Landscapes

Global climate change has the potential to intensify the current threat to forests and landscapes by increasing the risk of wildfire and altering the distribution and character of natural vegetation. If temperatures rise into the medium warming range, wildfire occurrence statewide could increase from 57 percent to 169 percent by 2085 (CNRA 2009). However, since wildfire risk is determined by a combination of factors, including precipitation, winds, temperature, and landscape and vegetation conditions, future risks will not be uniform throughout the state.

Rising Sea Levels

Rising sea levels, more intense coastal storms, and warmer water temperatures could increasingly threaten the state's coastal regions. Over the 20th century, sea level has risen by about seven inches along the California coast (CNRA 2009). It is projected that sea level rise of up to 55 inches (1.4 meters) could occur by the end of this century (CNRA 2009). This projection accounts for the global growth of dams and reservoirs and how they can affect surface runoff into the oceans, but it does not account for the possibility of substantial ice melting from Greenland or the West Antarctic Ice Sheet, which would drive sea levels along the California coast even higher (CNRA 2009).

4.15.2 REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

FEDERAL

Federal Regulation and the Clean Air Act

In the past, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has not regulated greenhouse gases under the Clean Air Act (CAA) because it asserted that the act did not authorize it to issue mandatory regulations to address global climate change and that such regulation would be unwise without an unequivocally established causal link between GHGs and the increase in global surface air temperatures. However, the U.S.

Supreme Court held that the EPA must consider regulation of motor vehicle GHG emissions. In *Massachusetts v. Environmental Protection Agency et al.*, twelve states and cities, including California, together with several environmental organizations, sued to require the EPA to regulate GHGs as pollutants under the Clean Air Act (127 S. Ct. 1438 (2007)). The Court ruled that GHGs fit within the Clean Air Act's definition of a pollutant and that the EPA did not have a valid rationale for not regulating GHGs. In response to this ruling, the EPA has recently made an endangerment finding that GHGs pose a threat to the public health and welfare. This is the first step necessary for the establishment of federal GHG regulations under the Clean Air Act.

STATE

Assembly Bill 1493

Assembly Bill (AB) 1493 (Pavley) of 2002 (Health and Safety Code Sections 42823 and 43018.5), requires the California Air Resources Board (CARB) to develop and adopt the nation's first GHG emission standards for automobiles. These standards are also known as "Pavley I." The California legislature declared in AB 1493 that global warming is a matter of increasing concern for public health and the environment. It cites several risks that California faces from climate change, including a reduction in the state's water supply, an increase in air pollution caused by higher temperatures, harm to agriculture, an increase in wildfires, damage to the coastline, and economic losses caused by higher food, water, energy, and insurance prices. The bill also states that technological solutions to reduce GHG emissions would stimulate California's economy and provide jobs. In 2004, the State of California submitted a request for a waiver from federal clean air regulations, as the State is authorized to do under the CAA, to allow the State to require reduced tailpipe emissions of CO₂. In late 2007, the EPA denied California's waiver request and declined to promulgate adequate federal regulations limiting GHG emissions. In early 2008, the State brought suit against the EPA related to this denial.

In January 2009, President Obama instructed the EPA to reconsider the Bush Administration's denial of California's and 13 other states' requests to implement global warming pollution standards for cars and trucks. In June 2009, the EPA granted California's waiver request enabling the State to enforce its GHG emissions standards for new motor vehicles beginning with the current model year.

Also in 2009, President Obama announced a national policy aimed at both increasing fuel economy and reducing GHG pollution for all new cars and trucks sold in the United States. The new standards would cover model years 2012 to 2016 and would raise passenger vehicle fuel economy to a fleet average of 35.5 miles per gallon (mpg) by 2016. When the national program takes effect, California has committed to allowing automakers who show compliance with the national program to also be deemed in compliance with state requirements. California is committed to further strengthening these standards beginning in 2017 to obtain a 45 percent GHG reduction from the 2020 model year vehicles.

Executive Order S-3-05

Executive Order S-3-05 (state of California, 2005) proclaims that California is vulnerable to the impacts of climate change. It declares that increased temperatures could reduce the Sierra's snowpack, further exacerbate California's air quality problems, and potentially cause a rise in sea levels. To combat those concerns, the Executive Order

established total greenhouse gas emission targets. Specifically, emissions are to be reduced to the 2000 level by 2010, the 1990 level by 2020, and to 80 percent below the 1990 level by 2050.

The Executive Order directed the Secretary of the California Environmental Protection Agency (Cal-EPA) to coordinate a multi-agency effort to reduce greenhouse gas emissions to the target levels. The Secretary will also submit biannual reports to the governor and state legislature describing (1) progress made toward reaching the emission targets, (2) impacts of global warming on California's resources, and (3) mitigation and adaptation plans to combat these impacts. To comply with the Executive Order, the Secretary of Cal-EPA created a Climate Action Team (CAT) made up of members from various state agencies and commissions. CAT released its first report in March 2006. The report proposed to achieve the targets by building on voluntary actions of California businesses, local government and community actions, as well as through state incentive and regulatory programs.

Assembly Bill 32, the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006

Assembly Bill (AB) 32 (Health and Safety Code Sections 38500, 38501, 28510, 38530, etc.¹) requires that statewide GHG emissions be reduced to 1990 levels by the year 2020. The gases that are regulated by AB 32 include CO₂, CH₄, N₂O, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, and sulfur hexafluoride. The reduction to 1990 levels will be accomplished through an enforceable statewide cap on GHG emissions that will be phased in starting in 2012. To effectively implement the cap, AB 32 directs CARB to develop and implement regulations to reduce statewide GHG emissions from stationary sources. AB 32 specifies that regulations adopted in response to AB 1493 should be used to address GHG emissions from vehicles. However, AB 32 also includes language stating that if the AB 1493 regulations cannot be implemented, then CARB should develop new regulations to control vehicle GHG emissions under the authorization of AB 32.

AB 32 requires that CARB adopt a quantified cap on GHG emissions representing 1990 emissions levels and disclose how it arrives at the cap, institute a schedule to meet the emissions cap, and develop tracking, reporting, and enforcement mechanisms to ensure that the state achieves reductions in GHG emissions necessary to meet the cap. AB 32 also includes guidance to institute emissions reductions in an economically efficient manner and conditions to ensure that businesses and consumers are not unfairly affected by the reductions.

AB 32 does not explicitly apply to emissions from land development, though emissions associated with land development projects are closely connected to the utilities, transportation, and commercial end-use sectors. Further, because AB 32 imposes a statewide emissions cap, land development-related emissions will ultimately factor into consideration of greenhouse gas emissions in the state.

Climate Change Scoping Plan

In October of 2008, CARB published its Climate Change Scoping Plan, which is the State's plan to achieve GHG reductions in California required by AB 32. The scoping plan contains the main strategies California will implement to achieve reduction of 169 million

¹ Assembly Bill 32 is codified at Health and Safety Code Sections 38500, 38501, 28510, 38530, 38550, 38560, 38561–38565, 38570, 38571, 38574, 38580, 38590, 38592–38599.

metric tons (MMT) of CO₂e, or approximately 30 percent from the state's projected 2020 emission level of 596 MMT of CO₂e under a business-as-usual scenario (this is a reduction of 42 MMT CO₂e, or almost 10 percent, from 2002–2004 average emissions). The scoping plan also includes CARB-recommended GHG reductions for each emissions sector of the state's GHG inventory. The largest proposed GHG reduction recommendations are from improving emission standards for light-duty vehicles (estimated reductions of 31.7 MMT CO₂e), implementation of the Low-Carbon Fuel Standard (15.0 MMT CO₂e), energy efficiency measures in buildings and appliances and the widespread development of combined heat and power systems (26.3 MMT CO₂e), and a renewable portfolio standard for electricity production (21.3 MMT CO₂e). CARB has not yet determined what amount of GHG reductions it recommends from local government operations; however, the proposed scoping plan does state that land use planning and urban growth decisions will play an important role in the state's GHG reductions because local governments have primary authority to plan, zone, approve, and permit how land is developed to accommodate population growth and the changing needs of their jurisdictions. (Meanwhile, CARB is also developing an additional protocol for community emissions.) CARB further acknowledges that decisions on how land is used will have large impacts on the GHG emissions that will result from the transportation, housing, industry, forestry, water, agriculture, electricity, and natural gas emission sectors. The proposed scoping plan states that the ultimate GHG reduction assignment to local government operations is to be determined. With regard to land use planning, the proposed scoping plan expects approximately 5.0 MMT CO₂e will be achieved associated with implementation of SB 375, which is discussed further below. The Climate Change Scoping Plan was approved by CARB on December 11, 2008.

The timing of the implementation of the Climate Change Scoping Plan is currently uncertain as a result of a court decision in the case of *Association of Irrigated Residents v. California Air Resources Board* (San Francisco Superior Court Case No. CPF-09-509562). The court found that CARB, in its CEQA review, had not adequately explained why it selected a scoping plan that included a cap and trade program rather than an alternative plan.

Senate Bill 1368

Senate Bill (SB) 1368 (2006) (codified at Public Utilities Code Chapter 3) is the companion bill of AB 32. SB 1368 required the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) to establish a greenhouse gas emission performance standard for baseload generation from investor-owned utilities by February 1, 2007. The bill also required the California Energy Commission (CEC) to establish a similar standard for local publicly owned utilities by June 30, 2007. These standards cannot exceed the greenhouse gas emission rate from a baseload combined-cycle natural-gas-fired plant. The legislation further requires that all electricity provided to California, including imported electricity, must be generated from plants that meet the standards set by the CPUC and CEC.

California Climate Action Registry

The California Climate Action Registry (CCAR) was established in 2000 by Senate Bill 1771 (codified at Health and Safety Code Article 6 and Public Resources Code Chapter 8.5) and modified in 2001 by Senate Bill 527 (codified at Health and Safety Code Sections

42400.4, 42801, 42810, 42821, etc.²) as a nonprofit voluntary registry for GHG emissions. The purpose of CCAR is to help companies and organizations with operations in the state to establish GHG emissions baselines against which any future GHG emissions reduction requirements may be applied. CCAR has developed a general protocol and additional industry-specific protocols that provide guidance on how to inventory GHG emissions for participation in the registry. The California Climate Action Registry has now merged its GHG emissions registry with the climate registry and is primarily focused on offset projects and research.

Senate Bill 1078 and Governor's Order S-14-08 (California Renewable Portfolio Standards)

Senate Bill 1078 (2002) (Public Utilities Code Sections 387, 390.1, 399.25 and Article 16) addresses electricity supply and requires that retail sellers of electricity, including investor-owned utilities and community choice aggregators, provide a minimum 20 percent of their supply from renewable sources by 2017. SB 107 (2006) changed the target date of this bill's implementation to 2010. This Senate Bill will affect statewide GHG emissions associated with electricity generation. In 2008, Governor Schwarzenegger signed Executive Order S-14-08, which set the Renewable Portfolio Standard target to 33 percent by 2020. It directed state government agencies and retail sellers of electricity to take all appropriate actions to implement this target.

For informational purposes, during 2007, Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E), the electric utility that serves most of Placer County, including Rocklin, procured enough renewable energy to meet 13.1 percent of its electric supply.

Senate Bill 375

Senate Bill 375 (codified at Government Code and Public Resources Code³), signed in September 2008, aligns regional transportation planning efforts, regional GHG reduction targets, and land use and housing allocation. SB 375 requires Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs) to adopt a Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) or Alternative Planning Strategy (APS), which will prescribe land use allocation in that MPO's Regional Transportation Plan. CARB, in consultation with MPOs, will provide each affected region with reduction targets for GHGs emitted by passenger cars and light trucks in the region for the years 2020 and 2035. These reduction targets will be updated every eight years, but can be updated every four years if advancements in emissions technologies affect the reduction strategies to achieve the targets. CARB is also charged with reviewing each MPO's SCS or APS for consistency with its assigned targets. If MPOs do not meet the GHG reduction targets, transportation projects would not be eligible for funding programmed after January 1, 2012.

This bill also extends the minimum time period for the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RNHA) cycle from 5 years to 8 years for local governments located within an MPO that meets certain requirements. City or county land use policies (including general plans) are not required to be consistent with the Regional Transportation Plan (and associated SCS or APS). However, new provisions of CEQA would incentivize (through streamlining and

² Senate Bill 527 is codified at Health and Safety Code Sections 42400.4, 42801, 42810, 42821–42824, 42840–42843, 42860, 42870, 43021, 42410, 42801.1, 43023.

³ Senate Bill 375 is codified at Government Code Sections 65080, 65400, 65583, 65584.01, 65584.02, 65584.04, 65587, 65588, 14522.1, 14522.2, and 65080.01 as well as Public Resources Code Sections 21061.3, 21159.28, and Chapter 4.2.

other provisions) qualified projects that are consistent with an approved SCS or APS, categorized as “transit priority projects.” SB 375 applies to the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG), the MPO responsible for transportation planning in this region.

Executive Order S-13-08: The Climate Adaptation and Sea Level Rise Planning Directive

On November 14, 2008, Governor Schwarzenegger issued Executive Order S-13-08 in order to reduce and assess California’s vulnerability to climate change and sea level rise. The Executive Order initiated four major actions:

- Initiate California’s first statewide climate change adaptation strategy that will assess the state’s expected climate change impacts, identify where California is most vulnerable, and recommend climate adaptation policies.
- Request the National Academy of Science establish an expert panel to report on sea level rise impacts in California to inform state planning and development efforts.
- Issue interim guidance to state agencies for how to plan for sea level rise in designated coastal and floodplain areas for new projects.
- Initiate a report on critical existing and planned infrastructure projects vulnerable to sea level rise. This report was released in 2009 as the California Adaptation Strategy (CNRA 2009).

The Executive Order will provide consistency and clarify to state agencies on how to address sea level rise and other climate change related impacts in current planning efforts.

California Building Energy Efficiency Standards

Title 24, Part 6 of the California Code of Regulations, known as the Building Energy Efficiency Standards, was established in 1978 in response to a legislative mandate to reduce California’s energy consumption. The standards are updated periodically to allow consideration and possible incorporation of new energy efficiency technologies and methods. On January 12, 2010, the California Building Standards Commission adopted CALGreen and became the first state in the United States to adopt a statewide green building standards code. CALGreen will require new buildings to reduce water consumption by 20 percent, divert 50 percent of construction waste from landfills, and install low pollutant-emitting materials.

LOCAL

Placer County Air Pollution Control District

The project is under jurisdiction of the Placer County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD). The PCAPCD does not offer published guidance for addressing the GHG emissions associated with general plan updates and does not currently have an adopted threshold of significance for GHG emissions. There are no local regulations or law pertaining to climate change and greenhouse gas emissions. The PCAPCD does

provide suggested mitigations for reducing GHG emissions in proposed projects and is moving toward a district-wide approach to addressing emissions.

Proposed City of Rocklin Climate Action Plan

As a component of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update process, the City of Rocklin chose to develop a citywide GHG emissions inventory and Climate Action Plan (CAP). The City of Rocklin CAP augments the objectives, goals, policies, and actions of the City of Rocklin General Plan Update related to the reduction of GHG emissions. Specifically, through compliance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15183.5(b) and following industry standards, the CAP does the following:

- Identifies and quantifies major sources of GHG emissions from activities within the City of Rocklin municipal boundary, including municipal operations and citywide activities.
- Provides feasible strategies to reduce emissions from energy use, transportation, land use, and solid waste.
- Discusses the various outcomes of reduction efforts and how these reduction efforts can be implemented and advertised.
- Mitigates the impacts of the City of Rocklin on climate change (by reducing GHG emissions consistent with the direction of the State of California via AB 32 and Governor's Order S 03-05).
- Serves as a CEQA tiering document for projects proposed within the City of Rocklin for climate change, by which all applicable developments within the city will be reviewed.

The ultimate objective of the CAP is to reduce GHG emissions by 15 percent below 2008 levels by 2020 and 35 percent below 2008 levels by 2030. It is consistent with the State's goals related to climate change under Governor's Order S 03-05 and Assembly Bill 32, the Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006.

4.15.3 IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

STANDARDS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Per Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, impacts related to climate change are considered significant if implementation of the proposed project would result in any of the following:

1. Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment.
2. Conflict with any applicable plan, policy, or regulation of an agency adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases.

To meet the GHG emission targets of AB 32, California would need to generate in the future less GHG emissions than current levels. It is recognized, however, that for most projects there is no simple metric available to determine if a single project would substantially increase or decrease overall GHG emission levels or conflict with the goals of AB 32. Moreover, emitting CO₂ into the atmosphere is not itself an adverse environmental effect. It is the increased concentration of CO₂ in the atmosphere resulting in global climate change and the associated consequences of climate change that results in adverse environmental effects (e.g., sea level rise, loss of snowpack, severe weather events). Although it is possible to generally estimate a project's incremental contribution of CO₂ into the atmosphere, it is typically not possible to determine whether or how an individual project's relatively small incremental contribution might translate into physical effects on the environment. Given the complex interactions between various global and regional-scale physical, chemical, atmospheric, terrestrial, and aquatic systems that result in the physical expressions of global climate change, it is impossible to discern whether the presence or absence of CO₂ emitted by the project would result in any altered conditions.

However, the State of California has established GHG reduction targets and has determined that GHG emissions as they relate to global climate change are a source of adverse environmental impacts in California that should be addressed under CEQA. Although AB 32 did not amend CEQA, it identifies the myriad environmental problems in California caused by global warming (Health and Safety Code, Section 38501[a]). In response to the relative lack of guidance on addressing GHGs and climate change, SB 97 was passed in order to amend CEQA by directing the Governor's Office of Planning and Research (OPR) to prepare revisions to the State CEQA Guidelines addressing the mitigation of GHGs or their consequences. These revisions to the State CEQA Guidelines went into effect in January 2010. In acknowledging that perhaps the most difficult part of the climate change analysis will be the determination of significance, AB 32 requires CARB, the State agency charged with regulating statewide air quality, to recommend a method for setting thresholds which will encourage consistency and uniformity in the CEQA analysis of GHG emissions throughout the state. While CARB has published Recommended Approaches for Setting Interim Significance for Greenhouse Gases for project-level analysis, it has not yet completed this task for general plan projects at the time of this writing.

Under CEQA, an environmental impact report must identify and focus on the significant environmental effects of a project. Significant effect on the environment means a substantial, or potentially substantial, adverse change in the environment (Public Resources Code, Section 21068). CEQA further states that the CEQA Guidelines shall specify certain criteria to be used in determining whether projects would have a significant effect on the environment. However, as of the writing of this DEIR, the agencies with jurisdiction over air quality regulation and GHG emissions such as CARB and the Placer County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD) have not established a complete and adopted set of regulations, guidance, methodologies, significance thresholds, standards, or analysis protocols for the assessment of GHG emissions and climate change. A standardized, statewide methodology to establish an appropriate baseline, such as a project-level (regional GHG emissions) inventory, to evaluate the significance of GHG emission changes has not yet been established. This places the burden for establishing a methodology, and determining significance standards, on local lead agencies, such as the City of Rocklin.

The City is ~~taking a proactive approach in addressing greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reductions by developing a Climate Action Plan (CAP) in concert with this General Plan Update. Addressing climate change in this manner defines Rocklin as an innovative member of the local government community. The General Plan goals, policies, and action steps reinforce efforts aimed at reducing GHG emissions~~the CAP. The CAP is intended to be updated on a more frequent basis than the General Plan, ensuring that implementation of City efforts to reduce GHG emissions is in compliance with current regulation. This approach is especially important given the constant flux of new research findings, technological improvements, and legislative updates dealing with climate change.

For the purposes of this DEIR, the City has ~~decided to quantify~~total GHG emissions from the proposed General Plan Update by preparing a Climate Action Plan. The ~~DEIR analysis~~Climate Action Plan will determine whether implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be consistent with the state's ability to attain the goals identified in AB 32 (i.e., reduction of statewide GHG emissions to 1990 levels by 2020) or as outlined in the AB 32 Scoping Plan, the functional equivalent of 15 percent below "current" (2005–2008) levels by 2020. In other words, the City of Rocklin will need to ensure that future development can achieve a GHG emission reduction of 15 percent below current (2005–2008) levels by 2020 under the General Plan Update in order to be consistent with AB 32 and reach a conclusion of a less than significant impact.

Methodology

Transportation emissions from local roads and highways were calculated using the CARB Emissions Factor software, EMFAC2007, and the estimated traffic increases from the traffic study completed by DKS Engineering. PG&E provided the kilowatt-hours (kWh) of electricity and therms of natural gas consumed in Rocklin in 2008. These figures were multiplied by PG&E emissions coefficients that were verified by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC). Waste emissions were calculated using the EPA's Waste Reduction Model (WARM). WARM calculates and totals GHG emissions of baseline and alternative waste management practices — source reduction, recycling, combustion, composting, and landfilling. The model calculates emissions in metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (MT CO₂e) across a wide range of material types commonly found in municipal solid waste (MSW) (EPA 2009). The California Integrated Waste Management Board (CIWMB; now CalRecycle) 2004 Waste Characterization Study provided the percentages of waste by type (paper, glass, compostables, etc.) for use in the WARM model. Employment figures were determined by using retail, office, and industrial square footages as established with the growth projections in the General Plan Update, and then multiplied by employee to square footage ratios provided by SACOG in its I-PLACE₃S software.

Due in part to the emissions inventory being conducted in 2008, there were some limitations on the data required to develop what is considered by some to be a "complete" emissions inventory, as discussed below. The 2008 community-wide inventory of emissions captured the major sources of greenhouse gases caused by activities within the City per standard industry practice in place at the time. However, it is important to note that some likely emission sources were not included in the inventory because of privacy laws, lack of data, or a lack of reasonable methodology for calculating emissions. It is estimated that these sources not included in the inventory comprise less than 5% of total emissions in the City. While an official protocol for conducting community-wide emissions inventories was not available from the State in 2008, the

inventory conducted for the City was consistent with the then current best practices for greenhouse gas emission inventories. Inventories are commonly restricted to energy, transportation, and waste analysis due to lack of methodology or lack of reliable data to quantify other sources of emissions. This results in the exclusion of construction-related emissions, off-road vehicle emissions, propane emissions, refrigerant emissions, aircraft emissions, and sewage treatment emissions.

Lack of available data prevented the calculation of emission from wastewater (sewage) created in the City. Municipalities, special services districts, and private entities that collect, treat, and dispose of wastewater differ with regard to treatment and disposal methods, water efficiency requirements, impervious surface allowances, landscape irrigation efficiency standards, type of building stock, and data collection and reporting. As a result, it is unclear what portion of the sewage treated at each wastewater treatment facility originates from Rocklin businesses and residents. For this reason, estimates associated with the City's share of sewage could not be made at the time of the inventory effort. Full accounting of emissions from wastewater collection, treatment and disposal would have required extensive coordination with special services districts, such as community services districts and sanitary districts, other municipalities, and private entities.

Similarly, protocol and methodological barriers prevented the inclusion of all emissions from the treatment and movement of water consumed by the community. Water in the City is provided by the Placer County Water Agency (PCWA) and there is one PCWA water treatment facility, the Sunset Water Treatment Plant, which is located within Rocklin. The emissions inventory did not include emissions directly associated with the water treatment process; however it did include emissions from all of the electricity and gas consumed by the Sunset Water Treatment Plant for water treatment and transport purposes, despite the fact that the Sunset Water Treatment Plant serves jurisdictions other than Rocklin.

Given these limitations, it is likely that the City's greenhouse gas emissions are greater than presented in the emissions inventory. Furthermore, despite these limitations, the 2008 inventory is the best-available estimation of the City's greenhouse gas emissions. It is also important to note that because of the City's plan to address greenhouse gas emissions as development occurs on a project-by-project basis through the CEQA review process, the greenhouse gas emissions inventory limitations discussed above will not have a bearing on the City's future efforts of analyzing and mitigating greenhouse gas emissions.

It is important to note that all CO₂ emissions from General Plan Update implementation may not necessarily be considered "new" emissions given that the General Plan itself does not create new emitters (people) of GHGs. In other words, the GHG emissions resulting from new development are not necessarily all new GHG emissions, but the relocation of GHG emissions from one location to another. Emissions of GHGs are, however, influenced by the location and design of projects, to the extent that they can influence travel to and from the projects, and to the degree the projects are designed to maximize energy efficiency. For this reason and others, this DEIR calculates emissions in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO₂e) per service population⁴. Service population is

⁴ ~~Service population is an efficiency-based measure used to estimate the development potential of a general or area plan. Service population is determined by adding the number of residents to the number of jobs estimated for a given point in time.~~

4.15 Climate Change and Greenhouse Gases

an efficiency-based measure used to estimate the development potential of a general or area plan. Service population is determined by adding the number of residents to the number of jobs estimated for a given point in time. Service population was calculated using the General Plan growth assumptions for residential and non-residential land uses and I-PLACE₃S software which provides region-specific ratios of average employees per square footage of non-residential use as developed by the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG). The City of Rocklin's service population is presented in the table below.

<u>Population and Jobs in the City of Rocklin</u>	<u>2008</u>	<u>2020</u>	<u>2030</u>
<u>Population</u>	<u>53,843</u>	<u>73,414</u>	<u>76,136</u>
<u>Jobs</u>	<u>14,488</u>	<u>20,744</u>	<u>27,659</u>
<u>Service Population (Population + Jobs)</u>	<u>68,331</u>	<u>94,158</u>	<u>103,795</u>

Presenting greenhouse gas emissions as a per service population metric most accurately depicts the City's forecasted emissions and reductions potential. Linking emissions to service population estimates equalizes the impact of divergent growth rates between regions and establishes a balanced point of comparison with other jurisdictions. This approach is similar to the metric approach that the California Air Resources Board will use for implementation of SB 375. A per service population metric is simple, easily understood by the public, and consistent with metrics currently in use by many Metropolitan Planning Organizations, including SACOG.

The prediction of emissions into the future is accomplished by creating forecast years whereby a snapshot in time is taken under various scenarios. Forecasting is completed by adjusting baseline levels of emissions consistent with population, residential and non-residential, and transportation growth. The basis for all growth scenarios is the business-as-usual projection, which predicts how greenhouse gas emissions will increase if behaviors and efficiencies do not change from 2008 levels, yet population, residential and non-residential, and transportation growth (vehicle miles traveled) continue to increase. The business-as-usual scenario for Rocklin used analysis and assumptions included in the General Plan Update 2030 buildout scenario. Buildout is a worst-case scenario, or the maximum amount of development and population growth that the City could expect. While complete buildout of the City of Rocklin is very unlikely within the timeframe of this DEIR (2030), the projections in the General Plan Update analysis were conservatively used to be consistent with the rest of the DEIR analysis. To calculate emission projections for the year 2020, the 2030 emission projection data was interpolated using a compound annual growth rate.

The methodology used in this DEIR to analyze the implementation of the proposed General Plan Update's potential effect on global warming includes a calculation of GHG emissions, with some limitations as discussed above. Absent an adopted regulatory threshold or other regulatory guidance, the City has determined that the proposed project's potential for creating an impact on global climate change should be based on a comparative analysis of the General Plan Update against AB 32 targets in the year 2020 and progress toward Executive Order S-3-05 targets in the year 2030. In order for California to meet the goals of AB 32 and Executive Order S-3-05, emissions will need to

be reduced by 15 percent below current (2005–2008) levels by 2020 and 42 percent by 2030. The City of Rocklin would also need to achieve the same GHG targets in order to be consistent with AB 32.

Consistency with Greenhouse Gas Reduction Measures

Impact 4.15.1 Implementation of the proposed General Plan Update ~~and the Climate Action Plan~~ would implement a number of policies and activities as well as continue the implementation of existing City programs that would complement and be consistent with the early emission reduction strategies contained in the AB 32 Scoping Plan Report to the Governor ~~and Executive Order S-3-05~~ as well as the recommendations from OPR. Therefore, a conflict with any applicable plan, policy, or regulation of an agency adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases is not anticipated. This impact is considered to be **less than cumulatively considerable**.

Table 4.15-2 identifies major GHG emissions per service population under a business-as-usual (BAU) scenario ~~(General Plan Update without CAP implementation)~~. **Table 4.15-2** includes GHG emissions per service population for the years 2008 (current levels), 2020, and 2030. It should be noted that these are emissions from major sources and do not factor into smaller GHG emission sources (e.g., miscellaneous maintenance operations in the city such as landscape maintenance and construction activities) and other inventory limitations as discussed above, as well as GHG reduction measures currently and planned to be employed by the City.

GHG emissions generated by subsequent development under the proposed General Plan Update would predominantly consist of CO₂. In comparison to criteria air pollutants, such as ozone and PM₁₀ (particulate matter 10 microns or less), CO₂ emissions persist in the atmosphere for a substantially longer period of time. While emissions of other greenhouse gases, such as methane, are important with respect to global climate change, emission levels of other GHGs are less dependent on the land use and circulation patterns associated with the proposed land use development project than are levels of CO₂.

**TABLE 4.15-2
PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN UPDATE GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IN
CARBON DIOXIDE EQUIVALENT (CO₂E) (BUSINESS AS USUAL)**

General Plan Update without Climate Action Plan (Business As Usual)		
Sector	Metric Tons CO₂e	CO₂e/Service Population
Year 2008 (Current Levels)		
Energy	192,188	2.81
Transportation	234,207	3.42
Waste	1,605	0.02
Total	428,000	6.26
Year 2020		

4.15 Climate Change and Greenhouse Gases

Energy	255,439	2.71
Transportation	393,971	4.18
Waste	2,188	0.02
Total	651,598	6.92
Year 2030		
Energy	305,046	2.93
Transportation	561,863	5.41
Waste	2,270	0.02
Total	869,179	8.37

As shown in **Table 4.15-2**, the transportation sector is the single largest source of projected GHG emissions in the city.

The City of Rocklin is committed to reducing GHG emissions as development occurs by addressing GHG emissions on a project-by-project basis through the CEQA review process. As a part of such commitment, the City and has identified General Plan goal and policies from the California Air Pollution Control Officers (CAPCOA) Model Policies for Greenhouse Gases in General Plans document (June 2009) for inclusion into the Rocklin General Plan Update, subject to City Council approval. These policies are in addition to the policies identified below under the heading "Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation" that collectively would help reduce the proposed project's contribution to cumulative impacts associated with greenhouse gas emissions. developed strategies to meet its reduction targets. The City has set emission reduction targets for 2020 and 2030 that would result in a significant reduction from business-as-usual (unmitigated) General Plan Update emissions growth, consistent with the direction of AB 32 and Executive Order S-03-05. The strategies identified in the City's CAP combined with emissions reductions from state programs would achieve a CO₂e per service population reduction of 33.4 percent by 2020 and a 51.3 percent reduction in CO₂e by 2030 compared with business as usual, as shown in **Table 4.15-3**.

CEQA Guidelines Section 15183.5 describes the necessary elements of a greenhouse gas emissions reduction strategy for a local jurisdiction. The discussion below outlines how the City complies with each of the individual criteria listed in the guidelines through the City's Climate Action Plan reduction strategies.

- ~~The City of Rocklin has quantified existing and proposed greenhouse gas emissions throughout the community, including regional and state programs as appropriate. These quantifications used standard industry methodologies, where available, to support the conclusion in this plan that the City of Rocklin can meet its proposed reduction targets.~~
- ~~The City of Rocklin has adopted targets for emissions reductions as a part of its Climate Action Plan, consistent with the direction provided by the AB 32 Scoping Plan and Executive Order S-03-05. The Climate Action Plan will be evaluated on a regular basis to ensure target compliance is proceeding at a pace necessary to meet the targets of 2020 and 2030.~~

- The Climate Action Plan thoroughly analyzes emissions from the City of Rocklin's community operations, consistent with standard industry protocol at the time of its development.
- Measures proposed in the Climate Action Plan include those that are anticipated to significantly reduce emissions from the community. All measures were quantified using standard industry practice at the time of Climate Action Plan development, where available, to ensure that the stated reductions are supported by substantial evidence. Minor emissions reduction measures, including the City operational measures that do not significantly reduce greenhouse gas emissions, were not included. Reduction measures come from five primary sources:
 1. City of Rocklin General Plan policies
 2. City of Rocklin Climate Action Plan reduction measures
 3. City of Rocklin programs and actions currently being implemented
 4. Regional programs and policies in which the City participates
 5. Applicable California State policies and programs
- The City of Rocklin has developed a Microsoft Excel based monitoring and implementation tool to allow the City to track emissions over time and modify or replace emissions reduction measures that are not performing as anticipated.
- The greenhouse gas reduction strategies that are a part of the Climate Action Plan were developed in coordination with the City's General Plan Update efforts and General Plan Update Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and are fully included in the analysis associated with the City's General Plan EIR.

Through completion of the above criteria, the City has demonstrated that the greenhouse gas reduction strategies within its Climate Action Plan are consistent with the guidance set forth by CEQA Guidelines Section 15183.5.

Table 4.15-3 depicts the emission reductions in 2020 and 2030 with implementation of the CAP.

**TABLE 4.15-3
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS REDUCTIONS PER SERVICE POPULATION
UNDER CLIMATE ACTION PLAN IN 2020 AND 2030**

	Emissions Reduction 2020		Emissions Reduction 2030	
	Metric Tons (CO ₂ e)	Service Populatio n	Metric Tons (CO ₂ e)	Service Populatio n
CAP Measures				
Energy Efficiency and Conservation	-19,968	-0.22	-38,992	-0.38
Renewable Energy	-1,246	-0.02	-4,636	-0.05
Green Building and Design	-12,106	-0.12	-36,227	-0.34
Downtown Rocklin	-332	-0.00	-759	-0.00
Citywide Land Use	-29,716	-0.31	-53,592	-0.51
Alternative Transportation Modes	-39,204	-0.41	-102,494	-0.99
Vehicle Efficiency and Alternative Fuels	-1,889	-0.03	-3,405	-0.04
Waste Reduction	-936	-0.01	-971	-0.01
Total CAP Measure Reductions	-105,397	-1.12	-241,073	-2.32
State Measures				
Renewable Portfolio Standard	-42,164	-0.44	-94,872	-0.91
Pavley (AB 1493)	-63,339	-0.67	-91,133	-0.87
Low Carbon Fuel Standard	-5,700	-0.06	-18,226	-0.17
Total State Measure Reductions	-111,204	-1.18	-204,232	-1.96
Total Reduction (CAP and State Measures)	-216,597	-2.30	-445,304	-4.29
Projected Emissions Levels under General Plan (BAU)	651,598	6.92	869,178	8.37
Net Emissions (projected reductions)	435,000	4.62	423,873	4.08
Percentage Reduction	33.2%		51.2%	

As shown in Table 4.15-3, the City of Rocklin would achieve (and exceed) the GHG targets of 15 percent below current (2005–2008) per service population levels by 2020 and 42 percent by 2030 and is therefore consistent with AB 32.

In addition to the General Plan Update policies for GHG emissions discussed above and noted below, the following citywide programs and policies also contribute to the reduction of GHG emissions:

- Participation in Pacific Gas and Electric's (PG&E) Climate Smart Program – The City agreed to a fixed increase to its monthly PG&E bill to offset the carbon emissions caused by energy used in City facilities.

4.15 Climate Change and Greenhouse Gases

- The City passed a resolution supporting the Partnership for Prosperity Clean Technology Initiative to attract clean technology companies.
- The City is a member of the U.S. Green Building Council, a nonprofit organization dedicated to sustainable building design and construction.
- The City is working toward Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) certification on its Administration and Police Station buildings, with efforts including changes in cleaning practices, cleaning materials and supplies, energy efficiency, and indoor environmental quality.
- The City is a member of Build-It-Green, a nonprofit organization focused on providing education and information to individuals and developers of residential projects on ways they can utilize green technology and products to reduce energy usage, save resources, and build a healthier indoor environment.
- Training for the City's building inspections and development staff on green building project certifications and the requirements on how to build green.
- The City is participating in implementing a universal residential solar program with neighboring jurisdictions to address residential solar programs, develop a standardized fee, and create consistent information resources on green building practices for use on websites. The City will also be hosting a workshop for permit technicians to educate on green building practices and programs and to provide training.
- The City constructed solar carports at its police station facility, which generate nearly 40 percent of the annual electricity required to operate the facility.
- The City hosted a free, two-hour "Solar Saturday" workshop to provide information and education to residents on residential solar technology and hosted a similar workshop for developers.
- In 1998, the City's Public Works Department initiated a project to replace traffic signal lights (incandescent bulbs) with light-emitting diodes (LEDs). This project was completed in 2001, and all new traffic signal lights come standard with LED bulbs.
- In 1998, the City Council approved a plan to reduce water use in city street landscaping by removing turf and replacing it with drought-tolerant plants. The Public Works Department is continuing its program to reduce water use through turf removal/plant replacement and requiring developers to plant drought-tolerant plants and install drip irrigation along streetscapes in new projects.
- The City requires development projects' landscape plans to include an automatic irrigation system, and the use of drip irrigation is encouraged. Project landscape plans are also required to be certified by the landscape architect as meeting the requirements of the Water Conservation in Landscaping Act (Government Code Section 68591 et seq.).
- The City utilizes untreated water for irrigation purposes in some locations.

4.15 Climate Change and Greenhouse Gases

- The City created a centrally located park-and-ride lot that is separate and apart from the Caltrans park-and-ride facility program.
- The City has adopted a Neighborhood Electric Vehicle (NEV) Transportation Master Plan that identifies roadways that will accommodate NEVs.
- The City's Fleet Division is taking steps to reduce the City's carbon footprint by installing diesel oxidation catalysts on its diesel-powered vehicles and equipment. The Fleet Division is also purchasing alternative fueled vehicles that will use E85, has implemented procedures to reduce engine idling time, and is considering the introduction of hybrid vehicles into the fleet.
- The City is an active partner in the Placer County Materials Recovery Facility (MRF) that supports recycling of household and business waste. The MRF diverts over 50 percent of the solid waste generated within the city from landfill disposal, consistent with the requirements of AB 939.
- The City has adopted an Urban Forest Management Plan with specific strategies for expanding tree canopy within the city. The plan has shown that development in the city that is consistent with the City's General Plan policies and tree replacement mitigation requirements has resulted in an increase of tree canopy cover from 11 percent in 1952 to 18 percent in 2003 (a 63 percent increase). The plan provides a framework for the City to maintain its existing tree canopy cover and to increase it to a greater extent as development continues.
- Through the development planning process, the City has set aside a significant portion (approximately 19.4 percent) of city land area as open space and parkland. As a part of this effort, the City purchased significantly sized properties that were designated for development and reclassified them as parks and open space.
- In 1998, the City instituted a voluntary holiday furlough program that allows City employees (except essential service personnel) to have the opportunity to take time off between the Christmas and New Year's Day holidays. More than 90 percent of City staff takes advantage of this opportunity, allowing for energy savings by not having to power City facilities.
- The City is working with the California Energy Commission in the Motherlode Program, which allows for replacement of HVAC and lighting equipment that are not energy efficient.
- The City is incorporating increased indirect lighting into new facility construction projects and encourages employees to reduce energy usage in facilities.
- The City's facility maintenance operations use recycled paper products in restrooms and maintenance activities throughout City facilities. In addition, products used for cleaning facilities are "green-seal certified," meaning that they are environmentally friendly.
- Some City facilities are utilizing an HVAC energy efficiency management system.

4.15 Climate Change and Greenhouse Gases

- Some City facilities utilize sensor-activated faucets, toilets, and paper towel dispensers.
- The City will be implementing preferred parking for carpoolers and alternative fuel vehicles at its Administration building.
- The City has an Oak Tree Preservation and Mitigation Ordinance.
- The City has a parking lot shade tree requirement as part of its Zoning Ordinance.
- The City requires electric vehicle recharging stations on appropriate development projects.
- The City has conducted native oak tree reforestation and restoration projects in city parks, open space, and along creek channels.
- The City will be implementing an environmental purchasing plan with the objectives of instituting practices that reduce waste by increasing product efficiency and effectiveness, purchasing products that minimize environmental impacts, toxics, pollution, and hazards to worker and community safety to the greatest extent practical, and, when practical, purchasing products that include recycled content, are durable and long-lasting, conserve energy and water, use agricultural fibers and residues, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, use unbleached or chlorine free manufacturing processes, are lead-free and mercury-free, and use wood from sustainable harvested forests.

Proposed General Plan Update Policies That Provide Mitigation

The following proposed General Plan policies would reduce the proposed project's contribution to cumulative impacts associated with greenhouse gas emissions:

- Policy LU-3 Apply a mixed-use (residential/commercial or office) land use category or overlay within the Downtown Rocklin Plan area and other appropriate locations in the City of Rocklin.*
- Policy LU-11 Encourage infill residential development that is in keeping with the character and scale of the surrounding neighborhood, while providing a variety of densities and housing types as reflected by the zoning and land use designation of the infill property.*
- Policy LU-13 Review proposals for new residential development for compatibility with the character and scale of nearby neighborhoods, while providing a variety of densities and housing types as reflected by the zoning and land use designation of the infill property.*
- Policy LU-25 Encourage mixed use developments to locate near major arterial and/or collector streets.*
- Policy LU-31 Promote and renew as needed, the Pacific Street, Rocklin Road, Sunset Boulevard, Granite Drive, Lone Tree, Blue Oaks and the*

4.15 Climate Change and Greenhouse Gases

Highway 65 corridor business districts in order to provide diversified business opportunities and greater pedestrian orientation.

- Policy LU-39 Implement the Downtown Rocklin Plan to address land use mix, design features, parking, pedestrian movement, traffic and circulation, and promotion opportunities to provide a clear and strong economic identity to the core downtown area.*
- Policy LU-43 Attract job generating land uses that will provide a variety of employment opportunities for those who live, or are likely to live, in the community or South Placer subregion.*
- Policy LU-56 Encourage pedestrian oriented plazas, walkways, bike trails, bike lanes and street furniture within the Civic Center area and connections to other community areas.*
- Policy C-2 Coordinate land use and transportation planning to support transit services, NEV facilities and non-motorized transportation.*
- Policy C-3 Promote the use of Neighborhood Electric Vehicles (NEV) by providing accommodations (i.e., lane striping and signage) to facilitate the use of these vehicles where feasible within existing and planned rights-of-way.*
- Policy C-4 Promote the use of non-motorized transportation by providing a system of bicycle routes and pedestrian ways.*
- Policy C-5 Coordinate with public transit providers to meet residents' needs.*
- Policy C-6 Encourage non-residential development proposals to incorporate features that promote ridesharing or use of alternative transportation modes.*
- Policy C-50 Work with transit providers to plan, fund and implement additional transit services that are cost-effective and responsive to existing and future transit demand.*
- Policy C-51 Promote the use of public transit through development conditions such as requiring park-and-ride lots, bus turnouts and passenger shelters along major streets.*
- Policy C-53 Support the expansion of intercity rail passenger services, such as the Capitol Corridor, and implementation of regional rail passenger services.*
- Policy C-54 Support the study of developing rail passenger services within the Highway 65 corridor.*
- Policy C-55 Require Class II bike lanes in the design and construction of major new streets and to establish bike lanes on those City streets wide enough to accommodate bicycles safely.*

4.15 Climate Change and Greenhouse Gases

- Policy C-56 *Improve bicyclist and pedestrian safety through such methods as signage, lighting, traffic controls, and crosswalks.*
- Policy C-57 *Maintain the Rocklin Bikeway Diagram and update it as necessary with the approval of major new developments and/or general plan amendments not considered in the adopted Diagram.*
- Policy C-58 *Consult with adjacent jurisdictions regarding the development of regional bikeway and NEV links.*
- Policy C-59 *Promote pedestrian convenience and recreational opportunities through development conditions requiring sidewalks, walking paths, or hiking trails connecting various land uses including residential areas, commercial areas, schools, parks, employment centers and open space.*
- Policy C-60 *Consider NEV routes in the design and construction of major new streets and consider the establishment of NEV routes on existing City streets wide enough to accommodate NEV lanes.*

As discussed ~~identified~~ above, future development in the City and the resultant generation of GHG emissions ~~implementation of the proposed General Plan Update would be addressed on a project-by-project basis through the CEQA review process; through these efforts and implementation of the proposed General Plan Update~~ Climate Action Plan would be consistent with state measures to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The City's General Plan Update will be consistent with AB 32, and this impact is **less than cumulatively considerable**.

~~As part of the proposed project, the City plans to amend the Redevelopment Plan to increase tax increment limitations, increase the limit on the principal amount of bonded indebtedness secured by tax increment revenue, and extend the time limit for the commencement of eminent domain proceedings to acquire non-residential property. These amendments are intended to provide the City's Redevelopment Agency with the financial and administrative resources necessary to continue assisting projects that implement its program of blight elimination within the Redevelopment Project Area. While the extended time and financial limits authorized by the Sixth Amendment may foster and encourage new development that might not occur without the Sixth Amendment, or may occur faster than had the Sixth Amendment not been adopted, all development would be consistent with the City's General Plan and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. Any future development resulting from amending the Redevelopment Plan would occur in areas designated for such development by the General Plan as the land uses permitted by the Redevelopment Plan are the allowable uses under the City's General Plan. Therefore, the proposed Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan would not result in the generation of greenhouse gas emissions beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above. Impacts would be less than cumulatively considerable.~~

Mitigation Measures

None required.

Climate Change Environmental Effects on the City

Impact 4.15.2 Future development under the proposed General Plan Update could be exposed to environmental effects associated with climate change. This impact is considered to be **less than cumulatively considerable**.

As identified above, there are several technical studies regarding the environmental effects of climate change on the earth as well as California. Several adverse environmental effects have been identified that are projected to impact California over the next century. However, the extents of these environmental effects are still being defined as climate modeling tools become more refined. Potential environmental effects of climate change that could impact Rocklin could include the following:

- Adverse impacts on water supply availability
- Increased severity of flooding events
- Increased wildland fire hazards
- Alteration of natural habitats for special-status plant and animal species
- Air quality impacts

Because considerable uncertainty remains with respect to the extent and severity of overall impact of global climate change on California and the city, it is unknown whether these impacts would be significant specifically to Rocklin. This also includes the uncertainty as to what degree global climate change may adversely impact future Placer County water supply and availability. However, based on consideration of the recent regional and local climate change studies, and based on the knowledge that the Placer County Water Agency's surface source is anticipated to largely remain intact (though the form of precipitation is expected to come more from rain rather than snow), it is reasonably expected that the impacts of global climate change on the city would be **less than cumulatively considerable**.

Mitigation Measures

None required.

Generation of Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Impact 4.15.3 Implementation of the proposed General Plan Update and the associated future development would generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment. This impact is considered to be a **cumulatively considerable** impact.

As discussed above in Impact 4.15.1, subsequent development under the proposed General Plan Update would generate GHG emissions that would predominantly consist of CO₂. While emissions of other GHGs, such as methane, are important with respect to global climate change, emission levels of other GHGs are less dependent on the land use and circulation patterns associated with the proposed General Plan Update than are levels of CO₂. The City has been proactively undertaking current efforts and is also

proposing ~~a Climate Action Plan (CAP) and General Plan Update GHG emission reduction policies and project-by-project evaluation of GHG emissions through the CEQA review process to ensure~~ ~~be~~ consistency with the early emission reduction strategies contained in the AB 32 Scoping Plan Report to the Governor ~~and Executive Order S-3-05~~ as well as recommendations from OPR. While it is acknowledged in Impact 4.15.1 that the City of Rocklin is committed to reducing GHG emissions ~~and has developed strategies to meet its reduction targets~~ so that implementation of the proposed General Plan Update ~~and Climate Action Plan~~ would be consistent with state measures to reduce GHG emissions, it must also be acknowledged that continued development under the proposed General Plan Update will still generate GHG emissions. Therefore, buildout of the proposed General Plan Update would result in the generation of GHG emissions which are **cumulatively considerable** and **significant and unavoidable**.

~~In addition, as discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, and under Impact 4.15.1 above, the project includes the Sixth Amendment to the Redevelopment Plan and the CAP, both of which would be consistent with the proposed General Plan Update and with the development assumptions analyzed throughout this DEIR. As these project components would not result in land use activities or population growth beyond what is identified in the General Plan Update, they would not result in impacts associated with the generation of greenhouse gas emissions beyond what is analyzed for the General Plan Update above.~~

Mitigation Measures

None available to offset increases in emissions.

REFERENCES

- Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). 2006. *Source Inventory of Bay Area Greenhouse Gas Emissions*.
- California Air Pollution Control Officers (CAPCOA). 2010. *Quantifying Greenhouse Gas Mitigation Measures*.
- California Air Resources Board (CARB). 2004. *Climate Change Emissions Control Regulations*.
- California Climate Action Registry. 2009. *California Climate Action Registry General Reporting Protocol Version 3.1*.
- California Energy Commission (CEC). 2006. *Inventory of California Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Sinks: 1990 to 2004 (CEC-600-2006-013)*.
- . 2008. *Building Energy Efficiency Standards for Residential and Nonresidential Buildings*. <http://www.energy.ca.gov/title24/>.
- California Natural Resources Agency (CNRA). 2009. *2009 California Climate Adaptation Strategy*.
- European Fluorocarbons Technical Committee (EFCTC). 2003. *Fluorocarbons and Sulphur Hexafluoride: Perfluorocarbons (PFCs) Fact Sheet*. http://www.fluorocarbons.org/en/info/brochures/fact_10.html.
- Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD). 2007. *2007 Status Report on Renewable Energy at SMUD*.
- . 2009. *2008 Status Report on Renewable Energy at SMUD*.
- United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC), 2007. *Sum of Annex I and Non-Annex I Countries Without Counting Land-Use, Land-Use Change and Forestry (LULUCF). Predefined Queries: GHG total without LULUCF (Annex I Parties)*. Bonn, Germany. unfccc.int/ghg_emissions_data/predefined_queries/items/3814.php.
- United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 2006a. *Methane*. <http://www.epa.gov/methane/index.html>.
- . 2006b. *Nitrous Oxide*. <http://www.epa.gov/nitrousoxide/index.html>.
- . 2006c. *High Global Warming Potential Gases*. <http://www.epa.gov/highgwp/scientific.html>.
- . 2008. *Climate Change – Greenhouse Gas Emissions: Carbon Dioxide*.
- . 2009. *Waste Reduction Model (WARM)*. http://www.epa.gov/climatechange/wycd/waste/calculators/Warm_home.html (accessed April 7, 2009).